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1. Chairperson and Chief Executive  

 

Tēnā tātou katoa, 

Ki a rātou kua wheturangitia i te tau kua pahure, haere ki te manaakitanga o te wāhi ngaro. Ko 
ngā kanohi ora o Te Tauihu o Te Waka ā Māui, ngā waka e toru o kōnei, mauri ora ki a tātou 
katoa 

 

The Board and Staff of NRDA are proud to present the 2020/21 Annual Report, at the 
culmination of a year which has seen unprecedented challenges to our community and 
economy, and external acknowledgement of the exceptional levels of collaboration in our 
regional response to COVID-19.   

Through 2020-21 and for the forseable future, NRDA’s activities have and will continue to be 
focused on leading the region’s collaborative response to COVID-19, to support recovery, 
regeneration and strengthening the resilience of our region.  Moving on from the immediate 
and significant COVID-19 response activity, we have led the development of the Draft Nelson 
Tasman Regeneration Plan 2021-2031 that presents the regional aspirations for the next ten 
years.  This has been prepared under the auspice of the Project Kōkiri  Leadership Group, and is 
set within the context of the Te Tauihu Intergenerational Strategy.   This draft Plan is now out 
for final consultation with publication expected in August 2021.   

2020-21 began with major apprehension about how the economy would look as the year 
unfolded.  Independent economic forecasts indicated that the impact of COVID-19 in Nelson 
Tasman was likely to be on par with the hit to the national economy. We expected an 8% 
contraction in GDP over the year to March 2021 and an unemployment rate of 9% which 
threatened significant and far-reaching impacts on our local communities.  

Although the negative impacts that eventuated were not as severe as anticipated, there has, as 
forecast, been a disproportionate major impact on some businesses and sectors, including 
within the tourism, hospitality and retail sectors in particular, with variances often masked by 
overall measures of economic performance.  The year saw a significant increase in demand for 
our Regional Business Partner programme which delivers access to R&D funding, and to 
capability development support across the wide spectrum of businesses in our region.  At the 
end of 2020-21, dialogue with many of these businesses highlights significant ongoing 
challenges relating to increased business costs, namely around material supply, labour 
challenges (seasonal and skilled), and freight issues resulting in potential loss of product or 
delay of product exports. 

2020-21 has been an eventful and high-achieving year for NRDA and one in which the team 
continued to perform above and beyond expectations to deliver an exceptional result for our 
stakeholders.  Throughout the year, the business-as-usual work of NRDA continued at pace, 
and despite ongoing COVID-19 impacts and lingering effects, we are proud to have achieved 
36 of the 44 performance measures, with an achievement rate of 82%. COVID-19 had a 
significant impact on a number of NRDA’s core SoI activities, requiring a significant pivot of 
focus and resources, and impacting on the achievement of some KPM’s.  Of the 8 KPMs not 
achieved due to factors outside NRDA control, five  were entirely due to COVID-19 impacts, and 
3 due to funding and/ or change of national programmes/ policy. 

The year began with a focus on maintaining agility to respond to ongoing COVID-19 issues 
whilst seeking to address the points raised in the Council-initiated review of NRDA by Martin 
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Jenkins1, and delivering to Council’s specific expectations.  This work has resulted in the 
development of a new, strategy-led approach to regional development that NRDA will adopt 
from FY2021-22 onwards. 

NRDA’s most valuable asset continues to be our high performing team and the extraordinary 
commitment they have demonstrated.  This year we have developed a strong set of team 
values that truly reflect the beliefs and attitudes of our people: We are one team; We are bold; 
We are driven; We have respect.   

Mid-way through the year the incumbent Chief Executive Mark Rawson resigned to return to 
family in Waikato, taking on the role of Waikato Regional Director at Kāinga Ora. Following an 
extensive search process, our newly appointed Chief Executive Fiona Wilson joined NRDA in 
May 2021, moving from Tasmania with her family.  We acknowledge the extraordinary effort 
and hard work by Mark during his tenure at NRDA, not least of these being the role he played 
in establishing Project Kōkiri, and we applaud the decision by Economic Development NZ to 
honour Mark with the Distinguished Service Award at the EDNZ Conference in May 2021.  We 
also acknowledge and thank Toni Power for her dedication as Interim Chief Executive ahead of 
Fiona Wilson’s arrival. 

Our work cannot be achieved alone, and we thank and acknowledge the significant support of 
our public and private sector partners and businesses in the community with a shared interest 
in unlocking the economic potential of Nelson Tasman and which have supported our 
activities throughout the year.  These organisations include the Nelson Tasman Chamber of 
Commerce, Nelson Tasman Innovation Neighbourhood members, Nelson Marlborough 
Institute of Technology, Bowater Motor Group and the Government’s regionally based 
agencies.   

In particular, we acknowledge the support of our shareholder Nelson City Council and their 
funding partner Tasman District Council.  In a year when private sector support has been 
highly constrained, the support of the New Zealand Government has been critical to 
supporting our activities.  

We  would also like to acknowledge the significant contribution of our Board members for 
providing the direction and guidance required to guide us through this extraordinary year and 
position us well for the future. 
 
Nā mātou iti noa. 

 

Meg Matthews, Chairperson 
July - August 2020; April - June 2021 
 

 
 

Sarah-Jane Weir,  Chairperson 
September 2020 – March 2021 

 

Fiona Wilson, Chief Executive 

 

  

 
1 Review Of Nelson Regional Development Agency Operations - Final Report, MartinJenkins, 17 
March 2020 



 

 
6 
 

2. Introduction to NRDA 
 

The Nelson Regional Development Agency (NRDA) exists to make a difference to the future 
prosperity of the Nelson Tasman region through positioning, connecting and promoting the 
region, with a current focus on the recovery and regeneration of the region from the economic 
impacts of COVID-19.  Everything we do is built on a strong platform of collaboration and 
partnership with the public and private sectors to achieve alignment, build stakeholder 
engagement, and drive NRDA’s role in execution. 

The NRDA is a Council Controlled Organisation established on 1 July 2016 and is 100% owned by 
NCC. Core funding for the NRDA is provided by Nelson City Council (NCC). Tasman District 
Council (TDC) also contributes financially to the NRDA for economic development, business 
support and destination marketing and management services through a Service Level 
Agreement that sets out the accountability arrangements, and the anticipated outputs and 
performance measures. These services are delivered by the NRDA with a combined Nelson 
Tasman regional focus.  

2.1. Background to this Annual Report 
 
The onset of COVID-19 and resulting economic crisis led to the development of Project Kōkiri, a 
collaboration between NCC, TDC, NRDA, Nelson Tasman Chamber of Commerce (NTCC), Iwi 
and Central Government’s regionally based agencies2   

In June 2020, Project Kōkiri released the Nelson Tasman’s Economic 
Response & Regeneration Plan which outlined the region’s economic 
strategy for the coming twelve months. The aim was to initiate a 
response and regeneration that would stimulate the economy, protect 
and create new jobs and accelerate investment into the region. This 
Plan was aligned with the vision of the Te Tauihu Intergenerational 
Strategy – To Be Good Ancestors.  

For the 2020-21 year all of NRDA’s activities were focused on leading 
the collaborative implementation of this Plan and activity was aligned 
and driven by the seven-point action plan contained therein. While 
NRDA is responsible for the majority of the deliverables in the Project 
Kōkiri action plan, it is not accountable for all. For the 2020-21 year the 
NRDA’s role in Project Kōkiri was focused around the following Project 
Kōkiri activity areas: 

1. Targeted Business and Innovation Support 
2. Capability Building and Job Creation 
3. Business and Investment Attraction 
4. Stimulating Local Spending and Domestic Visitation 
5. Local Government Stimulus (note no NRDA component) 
6. Visitor Destination Management   
7. Regional Competitive Advantage and Regeneration Initiatives 

 
This Annual Report is structured to align with the Project Kōkiri Action Plan.  

 
2 https://projectkokiri.nz 
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2.2 Core Business Highlights for 2020/21 
 

To say the 2020/21 business year was extraordinary would be an understatement. Over the 
course of the year, NRDA maintained and strengthened much of our core activity on behalf of 
the region and introduced a number of new initiatives and interventions to help the region 
navigate COVID-19 and build back better from the pandemic.    

NRDA is proud to have been awarded the Economic Development NZ Best Practice Award for 
Collaboration, for the second year in a row.  This year the award was for Project Kōkiri, following 
the 2020 award for our work with the Nelson Tasman Innovation Neighbourhood. 

Targeted Business and Innovation Support 
• The Regional Business Partner Programme experienced a huge 250% increase in 

demand in 2020-21.  $3.4m of funding was approved, 240% of target; 80 businesses 
were intensively case managed, 200% of target; and despite this additional demand the 
Net Promoter Score that reflects customer satisfaction, was +100 (target +60) – a feat 
not achieved by any other region in New Zealand. 

 
• The Mahitahi Colab quickly became HQ for the region’s economic response to COVID-

19 and despite alert level disruptions, the Colab hosted 66 events with over 2,400 
attendees. Co-working also grew significantly and is nearing full capacity to the extent 
that expansion opportunities are being actively explored.  

 
“I joined the Mahitahi Colab shortly after moving to Nelson while working remotely for a 
Christchurch-based software firm.  The Colab provided me with a new network of friends and 
colleagues which really helped me settle into a new city and ultimately led to me landing my 
dream job with the Nelson AI Institute late last year.  I am now using my software engineering 
skills and AI to help incentivise tree planting to combat climate change, and feel well and 
truly part of the Nelson tech community. Thanks to the Mahitahi Colab for making that all 
possible!”  Hannes Hille, Nelson AI Institute 

 
Capability Building and Job Creation 

• The Education to Employment brokerage service exceeded expectations, culminating 
in the stand-out Fantastic Futures Conference in April, giving 100 students in Years 11 to 
13 the opportunity to learn and be inspired about pathways and opportunities in Nelson 
Tasman’s key sectors. 
 

• The ‘Pick Nelson Tasman’ seasonal worker attraction campaign was a crucial 
intervention in the region’s seasonal labour challenges and attracted high profile 
national media coverage including a live broadcast on Breakfast TV and features on 
Stuff, RNZ and Newstalk ZB. The campaign was a collaborative effort right across the 
horticulture industry with support from the Ministry of Social Development and the 
Regional Skills Leadership Group. The campaign was hailed as a success by the Minister 
of Social Development and Employment during Question Time in Parliament. 

 
• Building on the success of the campaign, a new partnership with the seafood sector 

across Te Tauihu was established to deliver the ‘Catch a Job’ campaign which focused 
on job opportunities in our local seafood sector and made 36 successful direct job 
placements.  
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• The Nelson Tasman Intern programme ran for its third successful summer with 10 
interns employed across a range of employers and industries around the region. The 
Interns rated their experience as 4.7/5 and 100% of them would recommend the 
programme to their peers. Building on the success of the intern programme, a new 
Nelson Tasman Grad programme was developed ready for a full launch in February 
2022. The programme was trialled in 2019/20 with great feedback - one “shared” Grad 
was employed in the region, completing 4 x 6-month placements in four different 
businesses across the region.  
 

The Fantastic Futures Conference was a great event. Things that stood out for me were the 
overall professionalism of the day, it ran very smoothly and the guest speakers were 
interesting, engaging and relevant to the students. The food was clearly a hit for the students 
and I think they responded well to the ‘conference-style’ format.  Catharine Wood, Teacher of 
Pathways & Gateway - Nayland College 

 
“Our experience with the Grad Share Programme has been highly positive. Our graduate has 
brought enthusiasm and a willingness to try unfamiliar tasks and added vibrancy and 
diversity to our business. We have enjoyed being part of an innovative programme, adding to 
our reputation as a great place to work by showcasing exciting grad opportunities. “  Jenny 
van Workum, OneFortyOne 
 
Business and Investment Attraction 

• The Intelligent Guardians (IG) event was delivered as part of TechWeek NZ to showcase 
how Nelson Tasman businesses are utilising science and technology to protect and 
prosper. Based on this success, we have become a strategic partner in the inaugural 
TEDx Nelson which will profile more great Nelson Tasman stories through the global 
TED platform.   

 
• As part of the Intelligent Guardians event, selected businesses and media outlets with 

an interest in science, technology and sustainability were sent targeted pitches in the 
form of goodie boxes from Nelson Tasman and invited to take part in the virtual event. 
Feedback from the boxes and IG event/concept was very positive with direct contact 
from over half of the people who received an invite, multiple shares and mentions on 
social media and two resulting meetings to discuss opportunities for the region. 

 
• Over a dozen business case studies and in-depth interviews were conducted as part of 

a deep dive into the region’s business attraction proposition. These case studies are 
now being repurposed into content pieces for the region and pitches for media outlets 
to profile the region’s business story.  

 
“The Intelligent Guardians platform has helped crystallise the movement for making 
sustainable business part of our region’s story to the world and the initiatives launched by the 
NRDA through the Project Kōkiri collaboration have ensured the region is capitalising on this 
opportunity and celebrating businesses who are actively contributing in this space.”   Florence 
van Dyke, Chia Sisters 
 
"Just wanted to send a quick thank you for Monday night’s Intelligent Guardians event. It's 
evenings like this that helped my decision to stick around in Nelson, and - along with many 
others I'm sure - I'm grateful for the work that went into it!"  Jennifer Webb-Bowen, Pics 
Peanut Butter 
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Stimulating Local Spending and Domestic Visitation 
• The high-profile ‘We’ve Got This – Kei a Tātou’ campaign showcased local businesses 

and regional offerings to over a million people by focusing on activating locals to tell 
our story. Widespread participation saw over 3,000 pieces of content created by locals 
and visitors across social media. The campaign videos were viewed over 362,000 times 
and the campaign featured in regional and national media.  

 
• This was followed by the ‘Nelson Tasman Adventure Challenge', a gamified approach 

encouraging locals to explore their own backyard and share their stories with the 
world, which secured over 9,000 entries to over 100 regional challenges.  

 
• We achieved social media engagement significantly above the industry average, 

across Facebook and Instagram, with overall post reach of 2.4m and 2m respectively.  
Website visitation and engagement soared, with page views up 63% and the number of 
unique users up 49% on the previous year.  This is on top of the 99% increase achieved 
last year. 

 
• Our sustained efforts pitching Nelson Tasman to national and international media 

continues to pay dividends with an earned media value for the region of over $5.2m.   
This does not include paid campaign media or press releases. 
 

• Our major events programme has exceeded targets securing an ROI ratio of 33:1, well 
above target.  A key highlight of the year was hosting the Black Ferns v NZ Barbarians 
match combined with the Tasman Mako semi-final at a time when little rugby was 
being played around the world 

 
• Through facilitation and liaison, we secured a number of business events for the 2021-

22 year including the New Zealand Planning Institute conference.  With 540 pax, this 
was the largest conference to be held in the region since 2014.  In addition, we 
submitted bids for specific conferences, including the Tourism Export Council of NZ 
(secured for August 2022, 320 pax, 3 days).  Business events have also exceeded targets 
despite ongoing staffing challenges for catering companies and venues, attracting in 
total over 2800 out-of-region delegates during January to March – 40% ahead of target.  
98% of these delegates attended events outside of high season which is desirable and 
above the target of 80%.   

 
 “It has prompted us to discover our own backyard - forcing us to do things we probably 
otherwise wouldn't have. Now when visitors come and stay we are armed with so much more 
to share with them. We've had fun over summer, as a family, challenging ourselves to get out 
and experience our home region.”  Adventure Challenge Participant 

“I can’t thank you enough and I truly truly love working with the NRDA as you guys have been 
the light shining us through in these extremely challenging but promising times. It’s amazing 
how much coverage Nelson Tasman has been getting recently. You are a blessing to us!”  
Cristina Holopainen, Maruia River Retreat 

 
Visitor Destination Management 

• NRDA continued to deliver a series of webinars which began during lockdown to 
provide support, advocacy, and strategic direction for the visitor sector during an 
incredibly challenging time. These calls featured up to 100 local businesses and 
included advocacy engagements with local MPs and Ministers.  
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• NRDA secured funding to develop a Nelson Tasman Destination Management Plan. 

Building on the strong foundation that NRDA has developed through years of support, 
association, and collaboration with individual operators in visitor industry, we have 
created a plan that will help the visitor sector navigate the ongoing COVID-19 
challenges and strengthen the sector to support better outcomes for the region 
environmentally, socially and culturally, as well as economically. As part of the tourism 
industry recovery and reset funding, we have now placed a bid for further investment 
to support the implementation of this plan.  Examples of initiatives to come in the 
implementation of the plan include delivery of a Food and Beverage Tourism Strategy 
and an Arts Tourism Strategy which have been written in close collaboration with 
industry.   

• We developed and launched the Zero Carbon Itinerary – unique in New Zealand.  This 
collaborative effort between NRDA, local visitor sector operators and EKOS has seen 
increasing numbers of operators seeking to measure and reduce their carbon footprint.  
Nominated as a finalist in the 2021 New Zealand Tourism Awards, it has garnered 
significant national and international attention and high levels of media interest.  The 
development of this holiday itinerary has been made possible because we have 20 
tourism, hospitality and F&B businesses that are zero carbon certified – more than any 
other region in NZ. This has positioned Nelson Tasman as a leading region in the 
development of light-footprint travel.   

• We kick-started the use of Virtual Reality and Augmented Reality experiences to 
promote the region; technology with the potential to be incorporated within the 
region’s visitor experiences in future.  

 
“The Zero Carbon Itinerary is fantastic! I am sure everyone is telling you the same thing. Well 
done to you and your team! Things like this keep us on the radar for when things start to get 
moving again. How does the song go….“The future’s so bright….I’ve got to wear shades!”  Royce 
Lock, YHA Nelson 

“The support from NRDA throughout the most challenging period the visitor sector has ever 
experienced has been invaluable. From the crisis calls during lockdown to innovative 
initiatives such as the Zero Carbon Itinerary. The We’ve Got This campaign was the most 
impressive work I have seen out of this region in a very long time!”         Brendan Alborn, 
AbelTasman.com 

 
Regional Competitive Advantage and Regeneration Initiatives 

• As part of the regional projects pipeline, NRDA supported multiple bids to central 
government for COVID-19 related investment including in the Strategic Tourism Assets 
Protection Programme, Jobs for Nature and Shovel Ready Projects.  

 
• Under the guidance of the Project Kōkiri Leadership Group, NRDA developed the initial 

Nelson Tasman Economic Response Action Plan (12 months), the Nelson Tasman 
Economic Development Briefing and the draft Nelson Tasman Regeneration Plan (10 
years) which mapped the region’s recovery from COVID-19, demonstrated joint up 
thinking across Nelson Tasman and provided an effective platform for central 
government investment into the region.  
 

• As part of our regeneration work, several collaborative initiatives were established to 
support key sectors, including:  

o a food and beverage specific Co.Starters cohort 
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o a food and beverage marketing cluster for Expo 21 
o a horticulture cluster workshop exploring sector transformation and digital 

enablement 
o a capability development project to help identify and grow talent in-region 

across all sectors. 
 

• A review of the regional identity, proposition and competitive advantage was 
undertaken with local collaboration partners which will inform the regional identity 
refresh, asset development and campaign activity for the coming year.  

  
“Project Kōkiri is a rare and admirable example of a region responding rapidly, collectively 
and creatively to immediate needs in ways that will also help the region’s long term 
transformation, as its plan describes. Its “We’ve Got This” social media campaign is 
particularly inspired.”  Rod Oram, Business Commentator  
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3. Statement of Service Performance for the year ended 30 June 2021 
3.1 Description of Outcomes 
The 2020/21 financial year began with a renewed focus on building on the solid foundations 
and partnerships established in NRDA’s first four years of operation, and on seeking to identify 
a future sustainable business model based on the outcomes of the independent Martin 
Jenkins Review of the NRDA. This work began in 2019/20 but was interrupted by COVID-19 
response activity. As 2020/21 drew to a close, we developed a new 3-yearly Statement of Intent 
model with NCC based on an agreed new strategy-led approach. 

While COVID-19 impacts on the region are ongoing, we are extremely proud that overall NRDA 
still achieved 82% (36 of 44) of the desired outcomes set in key performance areas of the 
2020/21 Statement of Intent. Of the 8 KPMs not achieved due to factors outside NRDA control, 
five  were entirely due to COVID-19 impacts, and 3 due to funding and/ or change of national 
programmes/ policy. 

3.2 Description of Inputs 
The greatest asset of the NRDA and the largest input to delivering on our core purpose and 
business plan is our high-performing team.  The team are enabled through the financial 
support of our shareholder and by our incredibly supportive public and private sector partners.  
The shareholder investment and the business plan are guided by the NRDA Statement of 
Intent.  In addition to the human and financial resources, the Nelson Tasman region also 
benefits significantly from the in-kind support provided through our range of public and 
private sector partnership relationships across all our activity areas.    

3.3 Description of Outputs 
3.3.1 Governance   
The Board has adopted a robust governance and policy framework that has specific 
governance policies as follows: 

• Family Violence Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Health Safety and Wellness Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Expenditure Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Fraud Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Reward Performance and Remuneration Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Accounting Policy (reviewed November 2020 by Board – Audit August 2020) 
• Gender Equality in Employment Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Investment Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Conflict of Interest Policy (reviewed November 2020) 
• Delegated Authority Policy (revied November 2020) 

A Register of Interests is tabled and updated at each Board meeting and any conflicts of 
interest declared.  All policies are subject to regular review no less than three-yearly as per the 
Policy Register. 

3.3.2 Reporting  
The Board met the legislative requirements as set out in the Local Government Act, to provide 
the following documents to the Nelson City Council (NCC) by the required dates: 

• 2019/2020 Annual Report by the 30th September 2020. 
• Half yearly report to 31 December 2020 by 1st March 2021. 
• The Draft 2021/22 Statement of Intent was delivered within the July 2021 timeframes 

established by NCC.  
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Quarterly economic reports were also provided to Nelson City and Tasman District Councils, as 
well as reporting separately and jointly through the Councils’ Joint Shareholders Committee.  
Both Councils provided input into the draft Statement of Intent. 

In addition to this, throughout the year, NRDA has provided regular shareholder and 
stakeholder updates, connected extensively with businesses and network organisations and 
held Board meetings at various business premises around the region. 

This Annual Report has been prepared in alignment with the NRDA Statement of Intent 
2020/21 and the Nelson Tasman Economic Response and Regeneration Action Plan, and in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and the PS PBE Tier 
2 framework. 

3.3.3 Strategy  
The NRDA aims to inspire others to share our Extraordinary Nelson Tasman identity story and 
experiences through new thinking and behaviour changes.   

Following the approval of the Statement of Intent (SoI), the Board adopted a business plan to 
guide NRDA’s strategy, and to drive and monitor activity to fulfil the key objectives and 
strategic parameters outlined in the 2020/21 SoI.  

The plan was driven by the NRDA’s purpose of  

“existing to make a difference to the future prosperity of the Nelson Tasman region 
through positioning, connecting and promoting the region. We do this by partnering 
with the public and private sectors in the attraction and retention of talent, visitors and 
investment who add value to the identity of the extraordinary Nelson Tasman region” 

and by NRDA’s responsibilities under the Project Kōkiri Action Plan: 

1. Targeted Business and Innovation Support 
• Responsive one on one business continuity service (Regional Business Partner 

Programme) 
• Targeted business recovery and regenerate accelerator programme 
• Reposition Mahitahi Colab to support Covid-19 recovery 

 
2. Capability Building and Job Creation 

• Contribute to the Interim Regional Skills Leadership Group (iRSLG) 
• Coordination of labour market services and recovery activity 
• Coordination of Education and Skills development activity 

 
3. Business and Investment Attraction 

(Repositioned to support business retention, support and confidence)  
• Targeted business relocation programme 
• Targeted investment and skills attraction to assist existing businesses in region 

 
4. Stimulating Local Spending and Domestic Visitation 

• Campaign initiatives and activations to encourage those who can, to support and buy 
local, build confidence and pride in the region, and generate national exposure to 
support the recovery of domestic tourism to Nelson Tasman. 

• Supporting local and social procurement policy and campaign 
 
5. Visitor Destination Management 

• Destination Management Restart and Recovery Plan   
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• Support the reactivation of events including Business Events   
• Reactivation of international marketing 
• Reactivation of the Nelson i-SITE 

 
6. Regional Competitive Advantage and Regeneration Initiatives 

• Regional Projects Pipeline that will identify and facilitate investment ready proposals 
around our areas of key competitive advantage 

 
 
 
7. Management and Operations 

• Regular engagement, communications, and information provision to over 3,000 
businesses across the region 

• Hosting of virtual events 
• Delivery of economic data insights, timely reports, and regional COVID-19 related 

information 
• Proactive engagement with the leaders of Kia Kotahi te Hoe and support as appropriate 
• Providing input to economic development stakeholder working groups and 

collaboration projects 
• Annual stakeholder survey 
• Team and cultural development 

 

These areas of focus are built on a strong platform of partnering with the public and private 
sectors to build stakeholder engagement, achieve alignment, and drive NRDA’s role in strategy 
execution. 

Building on the organisational purpose and strategy refinement in the 2019-20 year, the review 
of the longer-term sustainability of the current NRDA business model was further 
substantiated by the independent Martin Jenkins Ltd Review of NRDA operations. The report 
had three key recommendations: 

1. Build strategic alignment between the Councils and the NRDA to agree four or five 
outcome areas and related strategic priorities for the CCO, consistent with Council 
objectives. 

2. Refresh and communicate the value of the NRDA, reflecting the agreed strategic 
priorities and set out in an outcomes and measurement framework, and supporting 
monitoring and evaluation plan. This recommendation also includes developing a 
stakeholder engagement plan, a restructured SoI, and a new reporting framework to 
NCC and TDC. 

3. Take steps to secure the sustainability of the NRDA which includes reviewing the 
interfaces between the NCC and NRDA for efficiency improvements, completion of 
NRDA’s business model review,  and the development of a business case for additional 
funding.  

Good progress has been made with this work and, at the time of preparing this report, NRDA 
has developed a 3-yearly Statement of Intent model with NCC which supports strategy-led 
forward planning.  This new approach will be adopted for the 2021/22 year onwards.  During 
2021/22, NRDA will continue to work with NCC to implement these recommendations. 
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3.3.4 Programmes and Statement of Intent Key Performance Measures Summary 
This table presents a summary of achievement against the NRDA Statement of Intent (SoI) key 
performance measures for the year. The summary indicates the achievement of 36 of the 44 
performance measures, with an achievement rate of 82%. COVID-19 had a significant impact on 
a number of NRDA’s core SoI activities, requiring a significant pivot of focus and resources, 
therefore impacting on the achievement of some KPM’s.  Of those not achieved, seven were 
entirely due to COVID-19 impacts, organisational pivot and/or change of Government policy. We 
have followed the Audit NZ COVID-19 emergency reporting standards advice in assessing our 
performance measures.    

    Key Performance Measures Summary 
This summary reports progress against the 44 Key Performance Measures contained in the 2020/21 SOI 

Green:   Achieved Red:   Not achieved Amber:  Delivery impacted by COVID-19 or by another 
factor out of NRDA control 

Focus Area  Key Performance Measures Status 
1. Targeted Business and Innovation Support  
1.1 Responsive one on one 

business continuity 
service (Regional 
Business Partner 
Programme) 

 

a. Delivering RBP support to over 400 companies, attracting 
in excess of $1 million in RBP funding and a customer 
satisfaction net promoter score of +60 across the RBP 
programme by June 2021 

 

b. Targeting a minimum of 30% of businesses from any one 
district. 
 

 

c. 20 Tasman and 20 Nelson businesses intensively case 
managed. 

 

1.2 Targeted business 
recovery and 
regenerate accelerator 
programme 

a. Establishment of at least 3 business enhancement 
clusters with up to 12 companies per cluster.  

b. At least 40% of the companies involved in the research 
and invited into the programme will come from each 
district. 

 

1.3 Reposition Mahitahi 
Colab to support 
COVID-19 recovery 

a. Mahitahi Colab hosts at least 50 business and talent 
collaboration events attracting 1500 attendees.  

b. At least one COVID recovery and regeneration Co.Starters 
programme delivered with at least 10 potential start-up’s 
participating. 

 

c. The Student consulting programme has at least 10 
students involved, and they have delivered services to at 
least 10 Nelson Tasman clients. 

o 
 

2. Capability Building and Job Creation 
2.1 Interim Regional Skills 

Leadership Group 
(iRSLG) 

a. NRDA making a proactive contribution to the iRSLG 
programme. 

 

 

2.2 Coordination of labour 
market services and 
recovery activity 

a. Engage all 12 targeted schools (staff and students) in the 
region in the Education to Employment Brokerage 
Service (EEB) and facilitate the opportunity for students 
and school staff to be able to attend at least 4 industry 
sector expo/information events. 

 

b. Identify, trial, and evaluate up to two appropriate 
interventions that will help young people who are at a 
disproportionate risk from the economic fallout of 
COVID19, avoid or recover from NEET status. 

 

a. Establishment of work placement programme with at 
least 20 businesses and 20 students engaged. o 
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2.3 Coordinate Education 
and Skills development 
activity   

b. An increase to at least 20 students engaged in the intern 
and grad programme. o 

 
3. Business and Investment Attraction 
3.1 Targeted business 

relocation programme 
a. 10 target businesses relocation pitches presented 

including highlighting the benefits of being located in the 
urban centres of each district. 

 

3.2 Targeted investment 
and skill s attraction to 
assist existing 
businesses in region 

a. Facilitating investor or global impact work visas inquiries 
in a timely manner. (COVID restrictions dependent)  

b. Facilitation of an appropriate targeted skills attraction 
initiative if identified by labour market activity.  

4 Stimulating Local Spending  
4.1 Campaign initiatives 

and activations to 
encourage those who 
can, to support and 
buy local, build 
confidence, and pride 
in the region, and 
generate national 
exposure to support 
the recovery of 
domestic tourism to 
Nelson Tasman. 

a. Campaign launched by 20th July.  
b. Campaign achieves a digital content marketing 

engagement level that is above the national industry avg.  

c. Over 500 businesses from across the region are engaged 
in the campaign, with at least 40% coming from each 
district. 

 

 

d. Registration of at least 1,000 Nelson Tasman Expats to 
promote the campaign. 

 

 

e. Two in-market activations, 1 in Wellington and 1 in 
Auckland that secure national attention. 

 

 

4.2 Supporting local and 
social procurement 
policy and campaign 

a. Social Impact Nelson Tasman and the NTCC level of 
satisfaction with NRDA support of the delivery of this 
activity. 

 

 

5 Stimulating Domestic Visitation - Visitor Destination Management 
5.1 Destination 

Management Restart 
and Recovery Plan   

a. Regional destination management plan completed and 
endorsed by key stakeholders by June 2021. 

 

 

b. Development of 3 theme-based journeys within the 
region and 1 connecting Te Tauihu.  

c. Production of 2 visitor sector product development 
investment cases and 2 early-stage product development 
feasibility studies. With at least one in Tasman and one in 
Nelson City. 

 

o 
 

5.2 Support the 
reactivation of Events 
including Business 
Events   

a. Through the NCC events fund, support at least 12 
community events and major events contributing to the 
attraction of over 15,000 major events attendees (50% 
from out-of-region) delivering a return on event fund 
investment ratio of 20:1 

 

 

 

b. Contributing to the attraction of 2,000 out-of-region 
business event delegates, at an average of 2.5 nights each 
(5,000 room nights), with 75% between March-November 
for events to take place within the next three years. 

 

 
 

5.3 Reactivation of 
international 
marketing 

a. 50 Australian trade and media hosted and trained, and 4 
in-market trade training events attended or led (incl. 
virtual) with 200 referrals by June 2021. 

o 
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5.4 Reactivation of the 
Nelson i-SITE 

 

a. Minimising the level of COVID impact on the Nelson i-SITE 
while maintaining a Customer Satisfaction Rating of 80% 
of 4/5 and 5/5 ratings. (i-SITE data) 

 

b. Agreeing and implementing a long-term sustainable 
future i-SITE business model, within the context of 
meeting Council’s expectations and the revised national 
business model. 

o 
 

6 Regional Competitive Advantage and Regeneration Initiatives 
6.1 Regional Projects 

Pipeline that will 
identify and facilitate 
investment ready 
proposals around our 
areas of key 
competitive advantage 

a. At least 50 organisations engaging with the Pipeline 
triage process and receive the business support offered 
by the Pipeline team. 

o 
 

b. Of those Project Proposals which are developed to an 
investment ready stage, 20% are successful in securing 
investment. 

o 
 

7 Management and Operations 
7.1 Project Kōkiri 

Management and 
Operations  

 
 

a. Engaged with over 3,000 businesses across the region 
through communications channels to keep them 
informed with up-to-date information. 

 
 

b. Direct participation and engagement through virtual 
events from over 500 individual businesses, with at least 
40% coming from any one district. 

 

 
 

c. Maintain economic data insights, provides timely reports 
and regional COVID impact related information on a 
regular basis. 

 
 

d. Proactively engage with the leaders of Kia Kotahi te Hoe, 
the Nga iwi o Te Tauihu Transition and Recovery Plan and 
provide support where appropriate.  

 

 
 

e. Provide input to at least four COVID economic 
development related stakeholder working groups and at 
least 10 regional collaboration projects in Nelson and 
Tasman. 

 
 

f. Proactively contribute to the COVID Recovery Pou Leads 
Forum.  

 
7.2 NRDA Organisational 

Sustainability and 
Culture 

 
 

a. Annual Stakeholder engagement surveys demonstrate 
that at least 60% of respondents are positive about 
NRDA’s service. 

 

 

b. The NRDA maintains a balanced budget.  
c. NRDA delivers a clean Audit.  
d. Zero lost-time work injuries.  
e. The CEOs 360 review demonstrates an engaged and 

valued team with improvements shown within any 
identified areas for improvement. 

 

f. Every staff member completing at least one Professional 
Development activity annually.  
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3.4 Core Business Areas of Activity and Key Performance Measures 
During the 2020/21 financial period, the following activities were undertaken.  The key performance measures are based on those aspects 
that the NRDA has a span of control over and form the basis of the Statement of Intent (SoI) accountability to the shareholder.  During the 
year we have reported on a set of high-level regional indicators that we monitor and where possible, influence at a local level through our 
activity focus areas.  However, they are not the measure of performance for the organisation due to our limited ability to influence the 
significant number of factors that contribute to these indicators on a regular basis. It is important to note that COVID-19 had a significant 
impact on a number of the NRDA activity areas. 

Green:  Achieved Red:   Not achieved Amber:  Delivery impacted by COVID-19 or by another factor out of NRDA control 

 

1.  Targeted business and Innovation Support 
1.1 Responsive one on one business continuity service (Regional Business Partner Programme)  
Regional Indicator  (Why we 
do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• A positive change in 
regional productivity 
relative to NZ trends (GDP / 
filled job – infometrics data) 

 
• Sustaining the number of 

business units and jobs in 
the region, relative to NZ 
trends of growth or decline, 
post COVID. (Business Units 
& Filled Jobs infometrics 
data) 

Connecting with and understanding Nelson 
Tasman companies’ current situation and 
needs with a focus on the impacts of and 
recovery from COVID. 
 
Connecting Co’s with the various business 
support services and networks available to 
address their immediate needs and to assist 
in enabling them to be better positioned to 
withstand the future impacts.  
 
The programme has two key components: 
 
1. Coordination, management and delivery 

of the Regional Business Partner 
Programme (Mentoring, Business 
support vouchers and R&D support & 
funding programmes)  

2. Targeted one-on-one  COVID response 
and recovery service. 

• Delivering RBP support to over 
400 companies, attracting in 
excess of $1 million in RBP 
funding and a customer 
satisfaction net promoter score 
of +60 across the RBP 
programme by June 2021. 

• Targeting a minimum of 30% of 
businesses from any one 
district. 

• 20 Tasman and 20 Nelson 
businesses intensively case-
managed. 

• Delivered support to 454 
companies 

• Attracted $1.2 million in 
RBP funding 

• Customer satisfaction net 
promoter score greater 
than 60.  

• At least a minimum of 30% 
of businesses from any one 
district. 

• 89 Tasman and 133 Nelson 
businesses intensively 
case-managed. (note 
COVID impact) 
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NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others  

• NRDA has a contractual relationship with NZTE and Callaghan Innovation for the delivery of this programme. 
• NRDA delivers programme management and coordination, the front-line R&D, and some of the responsive 

COVID support services. 
• NRDA has a sub-contract for delivery of some parts of the service with the Chamber of Commerce and Nelson 

Tasman Business Trust. 
Progress Update • This has been a big year and business demand boomed with more returning businesses coming 

back for further RBP advisory support.  Our service experienced a 250% increase in demand this 
financial year.   

• We observed a mix of early optimism which, over the months, slowly moved to anxiety.  Key 
business challenges relate to increased business costs, namely around material supply, labour 
challenges (both seasonal and skilled), and freight issues resulting in potential loss of product or 
delay of product getting out of the region.  

 
• Active Company Engagements YTD = 783  
• $3.4m RBP funding approved 
• Customer Satisfaction –Net Promoter Score (NPS): +100  - this is the highest score achieved in NZ 
• Geographical distribution of businesses engaged with is broadly even between the districts. 
• Nelson & Tasman Businesses intensively case-managed: 80+ in each district. 
 

Status 
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1.2 Targeted business recovery and regenerate accelerator programme  

Regional Indicator (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• A positive change in regional 
productivity relative to NZ 
trends (Infometrics data) 

• A positive change in income 
levels for the region relative 
to NZ trends. (Mean earnings 
Infometrics data) 

• Sustaining the number of 
business units and jobs in the 
region, relative to NZ trends 
of growth or decline, post 
COVID. (Business Units & 
Filled Jobs Infometrics data) 

Delivery of a deliberate and proactive wrap-
around business acceleration service focused on 
supporting organisations that wish to collaborate 
on common business challenges and 
opportunities resulting from the impacts of 
COVID. The programme will focus on companies 
that make a significant contribution to our 
economy through generating demand and flow-
on impacts for SMEs and the rest of our 
community, while also contributing to the 
improvements in productivity and incomes in 
the region.   
  
The programme has three key components:  
1. Research & insights into the current 

situation, needs and solutions. 
2. Programme design, funding, delivery.  
3. Evaluation of impact and future 

sustainability. 

• Establishment of at least 3 
business enhancement clusters 
with up to 12 companies per 
cluster. 

• At least 40% of the companies 
involved in the research and 
invited into the programme will 
come from each district.  

 

• New initiative 
• Nelson Tasman has the 2nd 

lowest rate of productivity in 
NZ 

• Nelson Tasman Mean annual 
earnings are 15% below that 
of NZ. 

• Infometrics projected 
unemployment rate of 9% as 
a result of COVID 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA delivers research, programme design and delivery  
• Will require a high level of engagement with local and national business development solution providers, Callaghan and 

NZTE. 
Progress Update Research 

Our initial research phase identified the need for assistance to develop capability in three key areas: 
• International market development:  We identified a number of businesses that have international 

customers but who do not consider themselves to be exporters.  They may fall below NZTE requirements 
for support, or do not have time / resource to meaningfully engage with NZTE.   
 

• Capital investment and productivity:  There are a range of capital projects being duplicated within our 
region and assets that are under-utilised but have uncoordinated demand.  For example:  freeze-drying, 
plastics extrusion, fruit pulping and packaging.  There was interest in exploring different ownership 

Status 
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models, collective engagement of technical expertise to share capital investment in productivity 
enhancing projects and reduce costs and diversify risks.   
 

• Labour productivity through training:  Access to training and skills are limiting factors in developing 
technology and increasing capital investment.  There was broad interest across organisations to improve 
knowledge and capability, by understanding best practice and by sharing skills and experience.  
Improving capability of our people in-region is a priority given housing challenges and inter-regional 
competition for skilled workers.   

 
Business Enhancement Clusters Established 
In response to the needs identified above, we developed the following work streams.  Participating businesses 
were evenly spread between Nelson and Tasman i.e. at least 40% from each region. 
 
Food and Beverage 
• We delivered a F&B Co.Starters programme in partnership with the Food Factory and Mahitahi Colab as a 

‘test case’ for a wider F&B cluster.  The group was highly engaged and are all making good progress in 
their businesses.   
 

Horticulture / Productivity 
• We brought together an initial cluster of horticulture businesses willing to collaborate to identify key 

sectoral challenges and the areas in which we can assist the industry.  Key themes included: Labour 
shortages due to COVID impacts; Capability gaps (particularly new technology); Process automation; and 
Technology adoption. 

• A Provenance subgroup was formed – using data to build a story around Nelson Tasman’s provenance to 
build resilience 

 
Capability Development  
• Established a targeted work stream focused on upskilling local people quickly and cost-effectively in a 

range of areas to address capability challenges.  Work included engaging with our horticulture sector, 
Nelson Tasman Innovation Neighbourhood and other businesses to drafted a process for businesses to 
link with NMIT around  skills or capability gaps.   
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1.3 Reposition Mahitahi Colab to support Covid-19 recovery  

Regional Indicator (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• Collaborating to support and 
inspire clever business, 
innovation and talent in 
Nelson Tasman through a 
positive change in the 
utilisation of the Mahitahi 
Colab space for the hosting 
of collaboration events, 
tenants and student 
connections with business. 
(Mahitahi reporting)  

The intention is that together we will be able to 
build a more connected business and 
innovation community by creating stronger 
links between business, investors, researchers, 
business development providers and the 
education sector in a post-COVID environment.  
 
The programme has four key components:  
1. Collaboration and innovation events  
2. Coworking space  
3. COVID recovery start-up programme  
4. Student-led consulting programme and 

other initiatives designed to connect 
young talent with business. 

• Mahitahi Colab hosts at least 50 
business and talent collaboration 
events attracting 1500 attendees. 

• At least one COVID recovery and 
regeneration Co.starters 
programme delivered with at 
least 10 potential start-up’s 
participating.  

• The student consulting 
programme has at least 10 
students involved, and they have 
delivered services to at least 10 
Nelson Tasman clients.  

• Hosted 100 events  
• Attracting 2335 attendees. 
 
• New initiative  
 
 

 
• 12 Students involved in the 

consulting programme 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA has a lease and funding agreement with Mahitahi Colab for the delivery of the above services. 
• NRDA is a shareholder in the ownership of Mahitahi, with Nelson Marlborough Institute of Technology (NMIT) and NTCC 

and provides Governance and management support (finance and admin). 
• NRDA provides some additional support to Mahitahi around some of the event and programme delivery.    

Progress Update Events 
• The Colab hosted 66 business and talent collaboration events, attracting 2400 attendees, between 1 July 

2020 and 30 June 2021.  We considered this to be a very good result given the COVID challenges. 
 
Co.Starters 
• In addition to the Co.Starters F&B cohort detailed in section 1.2 above, we delivered three further 

Co.Starter programmes involving a further 25 businesses/participants.  Two of these cohorts were a 
mixture of start-up and established businesses, some of whom had been impacted by COVID. The third 
was delivered under our MSD contract, involving 8 participants transitioning to self-employment.   

 
Student Consulting Programme: Pareto Business Solutions 
• PBS delivered services to 3 Nelson Tasman businesses, short of the 10 proposed.  One significantly larger 

project required more time/ resource than anticipated, and, impacted by COVID-19, the programme faced 
other challenges including lack of student participants (tending to be international Masters students 

Status 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

o 
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impacted by travel restrictions).  The initiative was paused, with recommendations for future delivery  
referred to the Innovate Charitable Trust Trustees.  
 

Coworking 
• Mahitahi Colab has 19 coworking tenants, and approximately 100 regular users (includes NRDA, NMIT and 

Chamber of Commerce), and we have a higher proportion of full and part time collaborators over casual 
collaborators.  We continue to receive regular enquiries about coworking and are working with NMIT to 
increase coworking capacity and comfort. 
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2. Capability Building and Job Creation 
2.1 Interim Regional Skills Leadership Group (iRSLG)  
Regional Indicator (Why we do it) Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 
To better manage changing skills 
and workforce needs in the region 
and to support the recovery of 
labour markets.  
 
The iRSLG is the eyes and ears on 
the ground, gathering local 
intelligence, supporting the 
immediate response to the regional 
labour market impact arising from 
COVID-19 and advising Government 
on the region’s labour market. 

The iRSLG is one of the Governments 
responses to creating a joined-up approach 
to labour market planning to see the 
workforce, education, and immigration 
systems working together to better meet 
differing skills needs across the region.  
 
The iRSLG’s are facilitated by MBIE. 

• NRDA making a proactive 
contribution to the iRSLG 
programme.  

• New initiative 
• Research in Nov 2019 

identified that skills 
attraction and retention was 
identified as 1 of the 3 top 
challenges for 60% of Nelson 
Tasman Co’s  

NRDA Role and Collaboration with 
others 

• NRDA Chair as  initial Chair and ongoing member of the iRSLG, and the NRDA CE as  a member of the iRSLG.  
• NRDA will support MBIE and the iRSLG with labour market, education and skills activity that is identified as the iRSLG 

programme evolves. 
Progress Update • The practical focus of the iRSLG has been around seasonal staff attraction for the horticulture and 

fishing sectors, resulting in two seasonal labour attraction campaigns which the NRDA delivered,  
launched in February and May:   Pick Nelson Tasman, and Catch a Job.   

• NRDA Chair was interim Chair of the iRSLG, and NRDA CE was an active member throughout the 2020 
iRSLG programme. 

• The iRSLG will transition from an Interim to a permanent status in 2021/22 
 

Status 
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2.2 Coordination of labour market services and recovery activity  
Regional Indicator (Why we do it) Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 
• Minimising the level of COVID 

impact on the region’s 
unemployment rate, with the aim of 
being better than the projected 
9.0% by July 2021.  

• Minimising the level of COVID 
impact on the region’s NEET rate, 
with the aim of an improvement in 
the current levels of Nelson 17%, 
Tasman 12% (NZ 11%). (NEET rate) 

 

Coordinate activity that supports both 
businesses and individuals whose 
circumstances have changed as a result of 
COVID-19. A key focus on Young people 
(under 30) employment as the most 
affected age-group and to ensure we 
maintain a sustainable pipeline of future 
talent in the region.  
 
This includes:  
1. Liaison and coordination with Ministry 

of Social Development (MSD), iRSLG 
and other key stakeholder 
programmes. 

2. Delivery of the Youth NEET pathways 
project.  

3. Delivery of the Education to 
Employment Broker (EEB) Service. 

• Engage all 12 targeted schools 
(staff and students) in the region 
in the Education to 
Employment Brokerage Service 
(EEB) and facilitate the 
opportunity for students and 
school staff to be able to attend 
at least 4 industry sector 
expo/information events. 

• Identify, trial and evaluate up to 
two appropriate interventions 
that will help young people who 
are at a disproportionate risk 
from the economic fallout of 
COVID-19, avoid or recover from 
NEET status. 

• New initiative 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• July 2020 Infometrics 

projected unemployment 
rate of 9% by July 2021 

NRDA Role and Collaboration with 
others 

• NRDA works closely with MSD, iRSLG and other key stakeholders to ensure coordination of programmes to 
maximise impact and reduce duplication.  

• NRDA holds a contract for delivery of the Youth NEET pathways project with NCC. 
• NRDA holds a contract for delivery of the Education to Employment Broker Service with MSD. 

Progress Update Education to Employment Brokerage Service:  
• The Education to Employment Service (E2E) was rolled out and delivered as planned, with 

continuous engagement with all 12 schools in the region, through the careers advisors. 
• The majority of 2020 focused on undertaking research into what was already happening in the 

youth and vocational pathway space, engaging with key businesses, training providers and schools. 
A plan for service was confirmed for roll out in 2021. 

• We contributed to delivering 10 pilot projects/events in 2021 with the major event of Fantastic 
Futures in April. The Fantastic Futures Conference gave 100 Year 11-13 students an interactive day to 
learn and be inspired about pathways available in Nelson Tasman. The overwhelmingly positive 
feedback suggests this should become an annual event. 

• In Q4 we began a project to create a digital platform that is specific to the Nelson Tasman region 
and which will inspire young people with future pathways and provide detail about key industries. 

Status 
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The platform will be launched in approx. Sept 2021 and will link in with YES (Youth Employment 
Success) as the employer database. 

 
COVID-19 Youth NEET Interventions Project:  
• Based on extensive research with the Youth sector, we designed an intervention based on 

mentoring, with a focus on employability skills to support marginalized and at-risk youth to help 
them recover from or avoid NEET status.  

• The above research report was presented to the funders group (MSD, MOE, NCC and TDC) in 
January and we contracted PSUSI to deliver a pilot programme from March – November 2021. 
Progress so far is positive and there will be an evaluation at the end to determine next steps.  
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2.3 Coordinate Education and Skills development activity 
Regional Indicator (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• The majority of Employers in 
Nelson Tasman find it easy to 
access the skills required in 
the regional labour market. 
(Local labour market survey) 

• Minimising the level of 
COVID impact on the 
region’s NEET rate. 

 

Coordinating skills development and upskilling 
opportunities across the region to support 
retraining and redeployment as a result of 
COVID-19, with an overarching focus on 
ensuring we meet our talent needs, lift 
productivity and deliver on higher paying jobs 
throughout the region.  
 
This includes:  
1. Liaison and coordination with MSD, iRSLG, 

Ministry of Environment (MOE), NMIT and 
other key stakeholder programmes. 

2. Young people work placement, intern & 
graduate programmes. 

• Establishment of work placement 
programme with at least 20 
businesses and 20 students 
engaged.  

• An increase to at least 20 students 
engaged in the summer intern 
and grad programmes  

• Research in Nov 2019 
identified that skills 
attraction and retention was 
identified as 1 of the 3 top 
challenges for 60% of Nelson 
Tasman Co’s.  

• 2019 Infometrics NEET rate 
for Nelson Tasman was 11.2% 
vs 12.1% for total NZ.  (Tasman 
8.7% and Nelson 13.3%) 

• Other activities are new 
initiatives.  11 students 
participated in the 2019 
Summer of Tech Intern 
Programme.  

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA works closely with MSD, iRSLG, MOE, NMIT, other key stakeholders to ensure coordination of programmes to 
maximise impact and reduce duplication risk.  

• NRDA holds a contract for delivery of the Young people work placement, intern & graduate programmes with MSD.  
Progress Update Work Placement Programme:  

• The research, scoping and development phase was completed and a recommendation made to the 
Mahitahi Colab board to develop Mahitahi Workplace Learning.  This programme is designed to provide 
opportunities for students who do not have Work Integrated Learning as part of their course to gain ‘real 
world’ experience while studying and to support them to be “work ready”.  This would complement Pareto 
Business Solutions (refer to section 1.3 above).   

• The proposal was positively received by the Mahitahi board but requires external funding. The proposal 
has been presented to NMIT and is under consideration.  

• We did not achieve our target to implement this programme by the end of the financial year.  Due to 
ongoing funding discussions, it was not possible to have both businesses and students in place by 30 June. 

 
Intern and Graduate Programme: 
• The Graduate Recruitment Programme was developed.  The current focus is on attracting businesses to 

host 10 grads in 2022. One pilot Grad was employed across four companies in 2020-2021.  

Status 

o 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

o 
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• The Nelson Tasman Summer Intern programme concluded in February after a successful summer for the 
participants. Interns rated their experiences at 4.7/5 and 100% would recommend the programme. 
Employer feedback was also very positive.   

• However, due to COVID-19 impacts and risks that made it unattractive or impossible for businesses to offer 
placements, we only achieved 11 placements across both the Intern and Grad programme, well short of the 
target of 20.  Uptake for 2021/22 shows more positive signs. 

• Both the Intern and Grad programmes will be passed over to the Nelson Tasman Innovation 
Neighbourhood in Sept 2021 to coordinate and manage going forward.  While this is due to limited 
resource/funding within NRDA, the programmes have been developed to a level which makes it easier for 
NTIN to now manage, and NRDA will continue as a partner.   
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3. Business and Investment Attraction 
3.1 Targeted business relocation programme   

Regional Indicator Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• A positive change in 
knowledge intensive 
employment in the region 
relative to NZ. (Infometrics 
data) 

• Sustaining the number of 
business units and jobs in the 
region, relative to NZ trends 
of growth or decline, post 
COVID. (Business Units & 
Filled Jobs Infometrics data) 

Delivering a programme that leverages 
our advantages as an attractive place to 
live and visit into an attractive place to also 
work and do business, especially for those 
in the technology and service sectors, who 
can work from anywhere. Primary focus on 
businesses which will create new high-
value jobs within the region, in particular 
for the younger demographic and likely be 
located within our urban centres.     

Initial activity will target the key urban 
centers of Auckland and Wellington where 
we can capitalise on our lifestyle 
proposition and value case.  

The programme has three key 
components:  

1. Research, benchmarking and 
investment case development  

2. Targeted in-market programme 
design and delivery 

3. Post relocation integration and 
connection programme   

• 10 target businesses relocation pitches 
presented including highlighting the 
benefits of being located in the urban 
centres of each district. 

• New initiative. 

• In 2019 knowledge intensive 
employment in the region 
made up 26% of all 
employment (NZ 32%) for 
the 2019 year there was 
+3.6% growth (NZ +2.4%).  

• Infometrics projected 
unemployment rate of 9% as 
a result of COVID. 

• 2019 Business Demography 

o Business Units 13,311 

o Filled Jobs 54,623 

 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for research, programme design and delivery  

• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of engagement with other business support agencies and 
networks, such as NTCC and Nelson Tasman Innovation Neighbourhood (NTIN). 

Progress Update Business Relocation 
• We engaged with a range of businesses in and out of region to define and test Nelson Tasman’s live, 

work and do business proposition (and any changes post COVID) to help inform activity.  We also 
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worked closely with the Nelson Tasman Innovation Neighbourhood who identified Business Attraction 
as one of their top two priorities in July 2020. 

• We redeveloped our business attraction proposition and produced a range of case studies and stories 
which can be utilised via the nelsontasman.nz website in from Q1 2021/22, and is already being used 
internally for media and other targeted activity.   

• We utilised the ‘We’ve Got This’ campaign to profile and showcase local business stories and support 
building our value proposition for business attraction. 

• In May 2021 we delivered our key business attraction activity as part of Tech Week NZ.  The ‘Intelligient 
Guardians’ event held at the Suter Theatre was sold out, and showcased Nelson Tasman businesses who 
are utilising science and technology to protect and prosper.  Intelligent Guardians is linked to the Te 
Tauihu Intergenerational Strategy vision of “Being Good Ancestors”.  The event aimed to start a 
conversation about the opportunity we have to lead in the regenerative economic development space 
and the inspiring and innovative work happening here.  The event was live-streamed around New 
Zealand and reached over 3500 people. 

• An invitation to watch the event was sent to 30 targeted out-of-region businesses, accompanied by a 
gift pack of premium Nelson Tasman products, and information about the region. Feedback from the 
boxes and IG event/concept was really positive with direct contact from over half of the people who 
received an invite, multiple shares and mentions on social media and two resulting meetings to discuss 
opportunities for the region. 

• We also entered a strategic partnership with NTCC and TEDx Nelson to continue the Intelligent 
Guardians conversation and profiling activity at TEDx Nelson.  
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3.2 Targeted investment and skills attraction to assist existing businesses in region   
Regional Indicator (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• The majority of employers in 
Nelson Tasman find it easy to 
access the skills required in 
the regional labour market. 
(Local labour market survey) 

Identifying and delivering targeted 
investment and skills attraction activity into 
existing businesses to assist their growth, 
leading to the development of more high-
value jobs. This includes: 

1. Facilitating individuals looking to 
migrate to the region on investor or 
global impact work visas (COVID 
restrictions dependent).  

2. Targeted talent attraction for key skills 
shortages if identified through labour 
market activity. 

3. Assembly of a portfolio of projects that 
are investment ready. 

• Facilitating investor or global impact 
work visas inquiries in a timely 
manner. (COVID restrictions 
dependent) 

• Facilitation of  an appropriate 
targeted skills attraction intititave if 
identified by labour market activity 

• Research in Nov 2019 
identified that skills 
attraction and retention was 
identified as 1 of the 3 top 
challenges for 60% of Nelson 
Tasman Co’s. 

• 2 skills attraction campaigns 
delivered  

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for identifying and delivering activity.   
• The delivery of this activity will require a high degree of engagement with other business support agencies and 

networks, such as NTCC and NTIN. 
Progress Update Visa Facilitation 

• Because of COVID border restrictions across the world, effectively zero investor or global impact work 
visas inquiries were received and thus no facilitation was needed. 

Skills Attraction Initiatives 
• We delivered two targeted skills attraction campaigns - Pick Nelson Tasman and Catch a Job. 
• Pick Nelson Tasman was identified through the iRSLG to support the Horticulture sector’s lack of 

seasonal workers due to border closures. The campaign launched in February and had 1769 applications 
within three weeks which far exceeded all expectations. A back end recruitment function was delivered 
in conjunction with MSD which supported matching applicants with available jobs. Direct results from 
the campaign were hard to quantify due to many applicants applying direct (after receiving weekly 
campaign communications with job listings). However feedback from businesses and all stakeholders 
has been extremelly positive in terms of filling the labour shortage and the general profile raising of the 
sector and jobs available that the campaign achieved. 
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• Following the success of Pick Nelson Tasman, the seafood sector came together to support the 
development of a similar campaign to support their labour shortages – especially around Hoki season. 
Catch a Job launched in May and had 825 applications.   

• Feedback from the three companies involved shows that they were extremely pleased with the speed 
and quality of the campaign which NRDA created, and overall 36 people were successfully recruited.  
For the investment made by the companies, recruitment was much more affordable per head than the 
other alternative – using recruitment companies.  However the cost was still too high to be viable over 
the longer term.  The sector is keen to look at a collaborative approach for next year, perhaps working 
with the Horticultural sector to share costs.  A formal report will be compiled by NRDA in early 2021-22. 
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4. Stimulating Local Spending  
4.1 Campaign initiatives and activations to encourage those who can, to support and buy local, build confidence and pride in the region, and generate 
national exposure to support the recovery of domestic tourism to Nelson Tasman 
Regional Indicator (Why we 
do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance 
Measures 

FY20 Baseline 

• Increased domestic visitor 
spend in Nelson Tasman 
relative to NZ trends. 
(Infometrics data) 
 

• Increased awareness of 
local products and 
services (locals survey) 

Delivery of the ‘We’ve Got This’ cross—sector campaign designed to 
support local businesses and showcase the region as a visitor 
destination. This cross-sectoral approach will enhance the value and 
reach of the campaign and ensure alignment of regional messaging.  

The campaign is designed to achieve the following two key 
outcomes: 

1. A sense of solidarity and support within the Nelson Tasman 
community, igniting local pride and encouraging locals to spend 
locally on with local products and services and to explore their 
backyard and to tell their family and friends to visit. 

2. A platform to showcase the region’s offerings nationwide, 
including our award-winning food and beverage sector, stunning 
natural landscapes, vibrant arts and artisans, extraordinary visitor 
experiences and diverse calendar of events.  

A suite of campaign assets will be created that can be used by locals, 
businesses, visitors, media, event organisers and travel partners when 
promoting the Nelson Tasman region.  

A database of Nelson Expats (NEA) will be created to facilitate 
distribution of campaign assets and build longevity. 

Digital, Print and Physical marketing activations will run across our 
three key visitor markets of Auckland, Wellington and Christchurch. 
Collaboration with national media platforms and influencers will 
further amplify this activity and stimulate local spend and domestic 
visitation.  

• Campaign launched 
by 20th July. 

• Campaign achieves a 
digital content 
marketing 
engagement level 
that is above the 
national industry avg. 

• Over 500 businesses 
from across the 
region are engaged 
in the campaign, 
with at least 40% 
coming from each 
district.   

• Registration of at 
least 1,000 Nelson 
Tasman Expats to 
promote the 
campaign. 

• Two in-market 
activations, 1 in 
Wellington and 1 in 
Auckland that secure 
national attention. 

Regional Indicator 
Baseline 

• Domestic Visitor 
Spend (MBIE) for year 
ended June 2020 was 
$379m. 

• New Initiative with the 
locals’ focus and the 
scale of activity. 

KPMs Baseline 

• New initiative 
• Domestic digital 

engagement 5 times 
higher than NZ Avg 

• 36 businesses 
engaged in domestic 
visitor marketing 

• New initiative 
• New initiative 
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On-going promotion will be enhanced by seasonal marketing 
campaigns to promote shoulder season visitation.  

NRDA Role and 
Collaboration with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for programme design and delivery. 
• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of engagement with many sectors of the economy and other 

local business support agencies, such as NTCC, UN, TBPA, GBP, the Councils etc.  At a national level, the campaign will be 
delivered in partnership with Tourism New Zealand, airlines, regional airports and other transport partners to demonstrate 
our connectivity. 

Progress Update Regional Exposure & Campaign Activity: 
• The We’ve Got This campaign was launched in July 2020 and was executed successfully, supporting local 

businesses, leveraging local ambassadors and showcasing the region as a visitor destination. The launch 
video was watched over 362,000 times, whilst the campaign reached over 1 million people through our own 
channels and campaign assets were viewed over 82 million times. Over 3,000 pieces of content were 
created by businesses, locals and visitors across social media. Local businesses were highly engaged with 
the campaign including 91 who contributed over $40,000 worth of prizes to the prize pool. 

• The Nelson Tasman Adventure Challenge ran throughout the school holidays, encouraging locals and 
visitors to explore their backyard, support local businesses and try something new. Over 9000 entries were 
submitted from over 500 teams completing challenges around the region, receiving great feedback from 
those involved:  

• The ‘100 things to do in Nelson Tasman’ booklet, designed to inspire locals and visitors to support local 
businesses, was distributed to over 40,000 households, with an additional 10,000 copies being distributed 
via i-SITEs, tourism operators, events and libraries. 

• Outcome achieved by adjusted approach/ means:  280 people signed up for the NEA (Nelson Ex-Pats 
Abroad network).  It was initially thought that the NEA would be a major lever for the success of the 
campaign.  In fact, the campaign took on a life of its own and it was considered better to utilise resources 
elsewhere than to try to boost the NEA uptake for its own sake.  Resource was refocused onto the work 
with TNZ (see below). 

• Outcome achieved by adjusted approach/ means:  The two in-market activations planned for Auckland and 
Wellington were not implemented as we were unable to secure the necessary private sector investment, 
however significant TNZ investment was made available which NRDA pivoted to utilise for generating 
interest in the region.  The visibility of Nelson Tasman in our target markets that was achieved in this way is 
significantly higher than would have been achieved by the original planned activations.  This change of 
approach has ensured maximum benefit delivered with the available resources. 

• We worked closely with Tourism New Zealand to integrate and coordinate our marketing activity and 
leverage their nationwide campaign. We assisted over 170 businesses to feature in their high-reach, high-
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conversion campaigns, and we coordinated additional promotion opportunities for them via multiple 
national media channels. 

Digital Engagement: 
• Facebook organic engagement for the year was 7%, whilst overall engagement (organic and paid) was 11%. 

This is compared with an industry average of 3.6%. Overall post reach was 2,364,959 whilst total post 
engagements were 216,334. 

• Instagram organic engagement for the year was 6%, compared with an industry average of 1.49%. Overall 
post reach was 1,976,779 whilst total post engagements were 111,110. 

• Despite the loss of international visitors, we saw a substantial increase in visitation and engagement with 
our nelsontasman.nz website as a result of the additional reach and exposure the region was getting locally 
and nationally. Page views on the website reached 1,062,638 (up 63.14% on previous year), with 302,685 
unique users (up 48.93% on previous year).  

Media & Influencers: 
• We pitched regularly to media with a strong focus on the New Zealand Herald, which has a weekly brand 

audience of 1.632 million people. This pitching work has resulted in over 1000 local business features across 
print and digital channels to date, delivering over $3 million of editorial value for the region.  

• We coordinated 26 media and influencer famils, generating high levels of exposure for the region across 
major platforms such as the New Zealand Herald, Stuff.co.nz, Kia Ora Magazine, Neat Places, TVNZ and 
Womans Day magazine. Some key highlights included the RevealNZ Youtube series with Dane and Stacey 
which saw 1,554,783 minutes of Nelson Tasman content being watched and which received a total 
exposure of over 3.4 million.  Our region also featured across five episodes of The Bachelor NZ, and the 
TVNZ Breakfast show was filmed in the region twice, featuring local businesses and personalities and 
showcasing our visitor experiences. 
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4.2 Supporting local and social procurement policy and campaign   

Regional Indicator  (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance 
Measures 

FY20 Baseline 

• Increased participation by 
social enterprise 
organisations in local 
economy. (survey) 

• Increased awareness of social 
enterprise in creating an 
economy built on positive 
impact. (survey)  

Supporting NTCC and Social Impact Nelson as they 
establish a local and social procurement policy to enable 
greater economic activity and local business participation 
in public and private projects and stimulus initiatives. This 
activity has four key components: 

1. Identify key procurement contacts in region. 

2. Work with the Akina Foundation on education 
resources for social enterprise. 

3. Work with Akina Foundation to educate procurement 
contacts as to the value of supporting social enterprise 
. 

4. Recruit local social procurement ambassadors to 
promote the concept to their business peers. 

• Social Impact Nelson 
Tasman and the NTCC level 
of satisfaction with NRDA 
support of the delivery of 
this activity. 

 

• New initiative 

 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will support Social Impact Nelson Tasman and the NTCC in their establishment of this activity. 

Progress Update • We assisted Social Impact Nelson Tasman (SINT) with the planning of a Social Procurement workshop in 
partnership with Akina Foundation. Attendees on the day included the CE of NCC and senior managers 
from larger businesses in the region such as New Zealand King Salmon, Chia Sisters,  Wakatū Incorporation 
and the DHB. 

• Following the workshop a second event was held by SINT to start an eco-system mapping project for the 
Nelson Tasman region. The purpose of the workshop was to identify not-for-profit organisations and 
companies working with a strong social impact focus. 

• Social Impact Nelson Tasman (SINT) have become less active over the last couple of months due to a key 
member of the team leaving and funding from Akina coming to an end, therefore progress has halted on 
this project. 
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5. Visitor Destination Management  
5.1 Destination Management Restart and Recovery Plan  
Regional Indicator (Why we 
do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance 
Measures 

FY20 Baseline 

• Positive community 
sentiment towards the 
visitor sector in the region. 
(NRDA survey) 

• Minimising the level of 
COVID impact on the 
region’s visitor sector, with 
the aim of performing 
better than the projected 
21% decline in domestic 
visitor spend and 90% 
decline in international 
spend by July 2021. (visitor 
spend infometrics data)  

Design, coordinate and lead the development of a 
Regional Visitor Destination Management Plan 
designed to evolve and respond to the significant 
impacts of COVID on the visitor sector, with the aim of 
ensuring that the tourism industry is a resilient and 
regenerative contributor to the Nelson Tasman 
economy, community and environment.  
 
Our Destination Management approach will target the 
following key areas: 
• Creating 100,000 passionate local ambassadors  
• Creating a light footprint (low carbon) visitor 

journeys within the region. 
• Smoothing seasonality with a focus on product 

development that will contribute to March-
November visitation.  

• Attract higher value visitors through product 
development  

• Create sustainable higher value careers  
• Supporting the sector to restart and recover from 

the impacts of COVID 

• Regional destination 
management plan 
completed and 
endorsed by key 
stakeholders by June 
2021. 

• Development of 3 
theme-based journeys 
within the region and 1 
connecting Te Tauihu.  

• Production of 2 visitor 
sector product 
development 
investment cases and 2 
early stage product 
development feasibility 
studies. With at least 
one in Tasman and one 
in Nelson City. 

• Sentiment survey new initiative 
• Domestic visitor spend 

projected 21% decline and 
international visitor spend 
projected 90% decline by July 
2021 

• New initiative 
• New initiative 
• New initiative 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for research, design and delivery of this activity. 
• NRDA will hold an agreement with MBIE to support the funding of the delivery of this programme. (Subject to successful 

funding outcome) 
• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of engagement with many local, regional and national public 

and private sector stakeholders.  
Progress Update Destination Management Plan (DMP):  

• We developed the Destination Management Plan supported by MBIE STAPP funding.  
Following endorsement of the final draft by the NRDA Board prior to 30th June, the DMP is now 
undergoing final edits in preparation for publication. 
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• The process of writing the DMP included engaging with over 1000 members of the public as 
well as a wide range of stakeholders connected more closely to the visitor sector.  

• The core pillars are building a visitor sector which enhances our businesses, communities, 
cultures and environment. The strong emphasis on light travel and eco adventures aligns with 
priorities of local communities and will distinguish Nelson Tasman from many other regions.  

• A 5-year implementation plan was created and submitted to MBIE for funding the first year’s 
priority projects starting in 2021-22.  

 
Theme based journeys: 
• In agreement with MBIE under the STAPP funding contract, we have created one, major 

themed journey this year which required significant time and resources in place of three smaller 
programmes:  The zero-carbon itinerary has gained far more traction with trade and media 
than we had ever anticipated, reaching a demographic well beyond our typical tourism 
marketing. 

o Within a week of launching the video about the itinerary, we received over 45,000 
impressions and 15,000 video views on facebook, and 1141 impressions with a 10% 
engagement rate on LinkedIn. 

o There are now 20 zero carbon certified tourism businesses in the region with more in 
the process of getting their certification (compared with many other regions who have 
none at all).  

o Nelson Tasman is nationally recognized as a leader in light-travel, having been invited to 
present at many national training workshops and featuring in several Tourism NZ 
training events offshore. 

o This initiative has been recognised as a national leader as a finalist in the 2021 Tourism 
NZ Awards (pending at time of Annual Report). 

 
Visitor Sector Product Development: 
• Under the COVID-19 operating environment, the development of 2 fully fledged business cases 

and feasibility studies was a stretch target; efforts have instead delivered strategies with which 
these business cases and studies can be aligned as we move forward, with two particular front-
runners taking shape (see below). 

• Food and Beverage Tourism and Arts Tourism Strategies are both complete. This has taken 
an industry-led approach to develop new ways to increase engagement between 
artists/artisans and both locals and visitors as well as raising the profile of Nelson Tasman as a 
significant hub for F&B and the arts.  

• Both strategies align closely with two proposals in particular and MBIE funding has been 
applied for to develop these concepts further: 
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o Creating an artisan hub in or near the i-SITE building 
o Enhancing the visitor experiences along the Great Taste Trail 

 
Ongoing support for local tourism operators re COVID-19 impacts: We continue to respond to a 
high level of enquiries from operators; attend networking and sector events/meetings, supply data 
and insights and to advise of the ever changing national and global situation. Two Nelson Tasman 
residents surveys were conducted to gauge local sentiment towards travel and tourism, each 
providing over 870 responses, one in May 2020, followed up by a second in July 2021.  
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5.2 Support the reactivation of Events including Business Events  

Regional Indicator (Why we 
do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• Minimising the level of 
COVID impact on the 
Nelson City events 
programme, with the aim 
of sustaining the level of 
event attendees attracted 
to events in our region 
relative to NZ trends. (NRDA 
data)  

Rebuilding of the major, business and 
community events programme post COVID. 
The events programme is designed to 
maximise the impact of events on Nelson City 
and the visitor sector while also contributing 
to smoothing seasonality: 
  
The programme has four key components: 
1. Delivery of major event lead generation  
2. Coordination of the events fund (major 

and community events)  
3. Event coordination, marketing, and 

development  
4. Business event lead generation and 

facilitation     

• Through the NCC events fund, 
support at least 12 community events 
and major events contributing to the 
attraction of over 15,000 major events 
attendees (50% from out-of-region) 
delivering a return on event fund 
investment ratio of 20:1 

• Contributing to the attraction of 
2,000 out-of-region business events 
delegates, at an average of 2.5 nights 
each (5,000 room nights), with 75% 
between March-November for events 
to take place within the next three 
years. 

• Supported 13 Community 
events 

• Supported 15 Major events 
contributing to the 
attraction of over 17,894 (79% 
from out-of-region) 

• Return on event fund of 31:1 
• Contributed to the attraction 

of 1912 out-of-region 
business events delegates.  

• >80% between March-
November. 

 
 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for the delivery of this activity. 
• NRDA holds an agreement with NCC to coordinate the NCC events fund 
• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of engagement with the local and national events sector 

stakeholder.  
Progress Update Community and Major Events (NCC):  

• YTD approved applications support 15 Community Events and 18 Major Economic Events.  
• The approved Major Economic Events are expected to contribute to the attraction of 15,597 out of region 

attendees, which has now reached target.  The number of out-of-town attendees is better than expected 
but has only reached 33%, short of the target of 50%. COVID-19 impacts continued to affect events and the 
committee decided to shift to supporting low-risk events not highly dependent on out-of-town visitation, 
and those that could still operate at Level 2 (social distancing outdoors, mask wearing on public transport, 
hand washing, etc).  

• ROI for Major Events is ahead of target at 33:1. 
• 22 of the 43 NCC Event Fund approved events in FY21 fell between March and November (51%).  This is 

reflective of the loosening on this aspect of the NCC Event Fund criteria by NCC. 
• The NCC Venue Hire Fund has received 9 applications YTD, 5 of which were supported. 
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• The biggest wins for the April to June quarter were securing the New Zealand Highland Dancer of the 
Year event and assisting with the inaugural Nelson Mid-Winter Festival. 

• A key highlight of the year was hosting the Black Ferns v NZ Barbarians match combined with the Mako 
semi-final at a time when little rugby was being played around the world. 

• The Nelson Tasman Regional Events Fund (REF) Panel held their inaugural meeting. 11 Expressions of 
Interests have since been received. The NRDA will be the lead entity for Te Tauihu to drive and administer 
the REF to drive capability and capacity in the Nelson Tasman events sector.  

 
 

Business Events:  
• 2815 out-of-region delegates attended business events during January to March, 40% ahead of target. 

98% of these delegates attended events outside of high season which is desirable and above target of 
80%.  Data on how many room nights were generated is not consistently available from event organisers 
or accommodation providers, however based on conservative estimates we believe that approximately 
7,000 room nights were generated. 

• Through facilitation and liaison we supported securing a number of business events for the 2021-22 year 
including Seafood NZ (250 pax for 2 days) and the New Zealand Planning Institute conference.  With 540 
pax, this was the largest conference to be held in the region since 2014 and we received fantastic 
feedback from the wider Nelson business community including the retail and hospitality sectors. 

• In addition we submitted bids for specific conferences, including the Tourism Export Council of NZ 
(secured for August 2022, 320 pax, 3 days) and the EDNZ conference (awaiting outcome, May 2022, 250 
pax. 3 days).   

• Business events have exceeded targets, attracting in total over 2800 out-of-region delegates during 
January to March – 40% ahead of target.  98% of these delegates attended events outside of high season 
which is desirable and above target of 80%. The strategic Regional Event Funding received from MBIE is 
starting to receive strong expressions of interest.    

• We developed a video/moving footage of Business Events showcasing venues, activities and landscapes 
in Nelson.  

• NRDA attended three trade shows in Q4 and achieved productive networking with good leads. These 
shows are valuable opportunities to reconnect with key people in the sector, increase brand awareness 
for the region and our venues, and to showcase our role as a convention bureau providing free impartial 
advice. 

• We face ongoing challenge in attracting Business Events, highlighting the region’s need for a purpose-
built conference centre.  Key venues are challenged by communication expectations required during 
event bid processes due to decreased staffing levels; and demand for large venues exceeds supply.  We 
receive many enquiries for conferences requiring exhibition space, plenary and breakout rooms, but we 
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have only one suitable venue (the Rutherford Hotel Nelson). The Annesbrook Conference Centre does 
sometimes host business events but this space is generally prioritised for community functions with 
limited availability.    
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5.3 Reactivation of international marketing 

Regional Indicator  (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

Minimising the level of COVID 
impact on the regions 
international visitor sector, with 
the aim of performing better than 
the projected 90% decline in 
international spend by July 2021 
(international visitor spend)  

Reactivation of the region’s international visitor 
marketing programme, when the border 
settings allow. It is very likely that this activity 
will have a heavy focus on Australia as a result 
of the activation of the proposed Trans-Tasman 
bubble. The programme has two key 
components:  
 
1. Regional positioning within Tourism NZ 

and target markets.  
2. Lead generation. 

• 50 Australian trade and media 
hosted and trained, and 4 in-
market trade training events 
attended or led (incl virtual) with 
200 referrals by June 2021. 

• Projected decline of 90% in 
international visitor spend by 
July 2021. 

• 254 Australian trade and 
media hosted and trained 

• 500 referrals. 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for the delivery of this activity. 
• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of partnership with Tourism NZ and the local and national 

tourism sector stakeholders.  

Progress Update International Trade and Media Hosting and Training:  
• There was strong interest from the Australian market when the Trans Tasman Bubble was opened.  
• We attended four virtual trade and media training events, physical events not being possible due to 

COVID-19 restrictions: 
o We presented 2 x Travel managers training with a total of 80 delegates 
o We attended the Virtual TNZ Travel Trade Show with an excess of 200 delegates 
o We attended Australian Trav Media event with 32 meetings with Australian Travel writers 
o However referrals have not been active because of the border closures. 

• In addition we presented on further webinars for UK, European and USA trade to raise the region’s 
profile and maintain our relationships with key TNZ staff and travel trade 

• We leveraged opportunities with TNZ and Air NZ and worked with other RTOs in the Top of the South to 
create greater impact in-market.  Nelson Taman featured strongly and repeatedly in TNZ trade training 
webinars which included filming live with some local operators. This is hugely valuable to keep the 
region top of mind in a sector that is globally undergoing massive staff changes. 

• We maintain constant dialogue with Australian travel journalists through Trav Media. From 31 stories 
that we pitched, six have been published with a further five in process.  Nelson Tasman will feature 
strongly in the upcoming special NZ edition of the Australian publication “International Traveller”.  This 
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will land in August, accompanied by an extensive social media campaign. It is expected to have a 
lifespan of about 2 years. 

• Significant postponements due to COVID include:  
o RTO trade training event in Sydney 
o Australian Breakfast TV filming live at Kaiteriteri Beach 

• Many relationships and a huge amount of industry knowledge has been lost with staff changes 
overseas – training and upskilling the remaining trade and media is vital to ensure awareness of Nelson 
Tasman rebuilds, so that higher end visitors (who rely heavily on travel trade advisors) are able to easily 
book future travel here.  
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5.4 Reactivation of the Nelson i-SITE  

Regional Indicator (Why we do 
it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• Enhancing the Nelson Tasman 
visitor experience through a 
strong national visitor 
information network delivered 
by locals who are authentic, 
trusted personalized hosts as 
measured by the customer 
satisfaction ratings.  
 

• Supporting the vibrancy of the 
Nelson City Centre by 
maintaining a footfall of over 
110,000 p.a. 

Reactivation of the Nelson i-SITE 
services to enhance the region’s 
visitor experience. 

• Minimising the level of COVID impact on the Nelson i-SITE while 
maintaining a Customer Satisfaction Rating of 80% of 4/5 and 5/5 
ratings. (i-SITE data) 

• Agreeing and implementing a long-term sustainable future i-
SITE business model, within the context of meeting Councils 
expectations and the revised national business model. 

• Customer 
satisfaction 
(4/5 and 
5/5 ratings) 
80% 

 
 
 
• New 

initiative 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for the delivery of this activity. 
• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of engagement with the sector, NCC and i-SITE NZ (the 

national body) in the design and implementation of the new national business model.  
Progress Update i-SITE  Performance 

• Customer Satisfaction is sitting at 4.5/5 for both Trip Advisor (220 reviews) and Google Reviews (453 
reviews).   

• The i-SITE achieved its (significantly) COVID-reduced annual target of $242K, finishing the year on 
$315K positive 30%.  Retail Sales totalling $14,400 were also up 144% against the COVID-reduced 
target of $5900. COVID has had a significant impact on the i-SITE operations, with footfall close to 
50% less than last year and the i-SITE trading at an annual loss of ($123K) 

• In May we launched the i-SITE facebook page, which is used to promote events, operators, and 
provide general regional updates.  The page currently has 100 followers. 

• Store hours remain at 10am-4pm Monday to Friday, with two staff working each day. We have a total 
team of three, all of whom are fully trained and working through i-SITE specialist programmes.  
 

Future i-SITE Model 
• NRDA review work on the i-SITE model has continued on track pending national model 

considerations.  However, 2020/21 progress on the future i-SITE model work has been delayed with 
the rescheduling, from May 2021 to early 2021/22, of the national i-SITE owners and managers forum 

Status 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

o 
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and consultation process.  These were to commence in May to discuss the revised proposed national 
business model.  With this delay, this work will be carried over to the 2021-20 financial year.  

 

6.1 Regional Projects Pipeline that will identify and facilitate investment ready proposals around our areas of key competitive advantage  

Regional Indicator (Why we 
do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• Amount ($) of new 
Government investment 
into the region. (measured 
through the pipeline) 

• Amount ($) of new private 
sector and philanthropic 
sector funding and 
investment into the region. 
(measured through the 
pipeline)  

Establishment and delivery of a coordinated 
regional projects pipeline programme which 
will assist with project development, the 
identification and securing of funding. There 
will be a key focus on positioning the region 
to attract as much central government 
funding as possible, by prioritising and 
supporting the development of key projects 
that are aligned to our region’s competitive 
advantages, so they can leverage different 
government funding sources as they are 
announced. 
 
In implementing this process we will engage 
in a proactive manner with the appropriate 
Te Tauihu iwi organisations and Māori 
enterprises to identify if and how this process 
may be able to specifically support iwi-led 
and Māori enterprise economic development 
related projects seeking investment.  
 
We will also look to utilise this process to 
support the securing of investment for the 
priority Te Tauihu Intergenerational Strategy 
projects, where that is appropriate. The 
Pipeline process will assist with:  
• Project identification and prioritisation 
• Project proposal development 
• Identification of funding and investment 

channels (public and private sector) 

• At least 50 organisations engaging with the 
Pipeline triage process and receive the 
business support offered by the Pipeline 
team.  

• Of those Project Proposals which are 
developed to an investment ready stage, 
20% are successful in securing investment. 

• New Initiative 
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• Drafting of Business Cases, PitchDecks 
and funding proposals. 

• Project advocacy and securing regional 
stakeholder support. 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will be responsible for the design and delivery of this activity. 
• The delivery of this programme will require a high degree of engagement with the public and private sectors incl: Iwi, 

councils, MSD, MBIE, MPI, Te Puni Kōkiri (TPK), and Department of Conservation (DOC). 
Progress Update • Initial intentions for this workstream were to provide a mechanism for the region to harness an 

expected upsurge in government spending, which was anticipated to be administered via the 
PGF/PDU.  Instead, the Government’s Shovel Ready Projects Initiative  absorbed attention and resources 
and prompted a rethink of whether the Pipeline was the right tool for the time, in light of emerging new 
government policy direction.  The Pipeline remains paused.   

• As NRDA moves from a project-based focus to a long-term strategic intervention approach, the viability 
of the Pipeline will be re-evaluated. Development of the Nelson Tasman Economic Regeneration Plan 
2021-2031 (Project Kōkiri 2.0) will inform decision-making about the Pipeline. 

o 
 

o 
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7. Management and Operations 
7.1 Project Kōkiri Management and Operations  
Regional Indicator  
(Why we do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• Mobilising the business 
community to be active in 
the economic response and 
regeneration. (levels of 
engagement) 

 

Establish and facilitate the Project Kōkiri 
Leadership and Action teams to enable 
the successful development, coordination 
and implementation of the restart and 
regeneration plan. 
  
Creating and communicating a trusted set 
of data and intelligence on the economic 
impacts, needs and responses to COVID-19 
on the Nelson Tasman business 
community to assist understanding and 
inform decision making. 
 
Delivering on a programme of 
communications and engagement that 
builds confidence in the Nelson Tasman 
economic response, allows people to 
participate and contribute their ideas and 
keeps key stakeholders well informed. 
 
Coordination of the economic recovery 
and regeneration plan with the social, 
health and Iwi recovery Pou activity 

• Engaged with over 3,000 businesses 
across the region through 
communications channels to keep 
them informed with up-to-date 
information.    

• Direct participation and engagement 
through virtual events from over 500 
individual businesses, with at least 
40% coming from any one district. 

• Maintain economic data insights, 
provides timely reports and regional 
COVID impact related information on 
a regular basis. 

• Proactively engage with the leaders of 
Kia Kotahi te Hoe, the Nga iwi o Te 
Tauihu Transition and Recovery Plan 
and provide support where 
appropriate. 

• Provide input to at least four COVID 
economic development related 
stakeholder working groups and at 
least 10 regional collaboration projects 
in Nelson and Tasman. 

• Proactively contribute to the COVID 
Recovery Pou Leads Forum. 

• New initiative 
 

NRDA Role and Collaboration 
with others 

• NRDA will coordinate and facilitate the Project Kōkiri Leadership and Action teams.  
• NRDA will deliver Project Kōkiri management oversight, coordination, and communications in partnership with the 

NTCC. 
• NRDA will lead on data and insights.  
• NRDA will lead the liaison and coordination with the Project Kōkiri Collaboration partners. 
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Progress Update • By continuing to collaborate with the Nelson Tasman Chamber of Commerce through Project Kōkiri, our 
business reach has grown considerably beyond our own channels. NRDA has consistently communicated 
with our database of businesses and regional stakeholders, as well as utilised channels including both 
councils communication platforms and the NTCoC platforms (social media and email newsletter).   The 
NRDA fortnightly newsletter alone reached 1,832 recipients, and LinkedIn posts have 1,251 followers.  This 
adds to over 3,000 recipients who are all reasonably estimated to be businesses. 

• NRDA has held a number of virtual events throughout the 2020/21 year, including regular visitor sector 
forums and Project Kōkiri webinars as well as targeted sector webinars for initiatives such as the We’ve Got 
This campaign. In addition to this, our signature event Intelligent Guardians was live streamed on social 
media and through a virtual hub and leveraged the TechWeek audience. These events have recorded 
registrations from 377 businesses.  The Intelligent Guardians event secured 3,500 views on YouTube, and 
based on the nature of the subject matter, we consider it reasonable to assume a significant number of 
these were businesses and would estimate, without being able to specifically attest,- that this meets the 
target of at least 40% from any one district  

• NRDA has maintained economic data insights throughout the year.  This is based largely on the 
Infometrics product available openly on the NRDA website, through the quarterly economic monitor 
updates, Infometrics webinars which are shared with main stakeholders (including COVID related data) 
and to a weekly COVID bulletin sent to businesses and stakeholders during the COVID-19 response period 
(now re-positioned as the fortnightly newsletter).   

• NRDA has established and continues to operate a Project Kōkiri Communications Team which includes 
communication leads from both councils, the Nelson Tasman Chamber of Commerce and NRDA. This has 
ensured economic development messaging and information is clear, consistent and delivered through 
multiple channels to increase the reach and effectiveness of these communications.   

• Through the RIF Economic Pou, NRDA has engaged specifically on the subject of regional data related to 
Māori, working with MSD to provide support to Kia Kotahi te Hoe.  We have identified a range of 
information that may be helpful and work is in hand to document this for further discussion. 

• NRDA has maintained a presence and contributed to multiple regional economic development forums 
and stakeholder groups including but not limited to: 

o The COVID Recovery Pou Leads Forum 
o Project Kōkiri Leadership Group  
o Regional Intersectoral Forum – Economic Pou 
o Te Ao Mārama Review Group 
o Nelson Tasman Innovation Neighbourhood 
o Businesses for Climate Action  
o Mahitahi Colab  
o Te Tauihu Destination Management Plan review group 
o Interim Regional Skills Leadership Group 
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o Education to Employment Group 
o Pick Nelson Tasman collaboration 
o Catch a Job Te Tauihu collaboration 

• The focus over the last quarter for Project Kōkiri was the work to develop the Nelson Tasman Regeneration 
Plan 2021-2031 (Project Kōkiri 2.0), previously described as the Regional Economic Development Blueprint.  
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7. Management and Operations 
7.2 NRDA Organisational Sustainability and Culture  
Regional Indicator  
(Why we do it) 

Description (How we do it) FY21 Key Performance Measures FY20 Baseline 

• Positive visibility of NRDA 
with key stakeholders. (NRDA 
survey) 

• Financially sustainable 
organisation. (NRDA Annual 
report) 

• Safe and Well organisation 
with engaged staff. (NRDA 
data) 

 

Maintaining oversight of the NRDA 
contributions to the delivery of Project 
Kōkiri and the future sustainability of the 
NRDA.   
 
 

• Annual Stakeholder engagement 
surveys demonstrate that at least 60% 
of respondents are positive about 
NRDA’s service. 

• The NRDA maintains a balanced 
budget. 

• NRDA delivers a clean Audit. 
• Zero lost-time work injuries. 
• The CEOs 360 review demonstrates an 

engaged and valued team with 
improvements shown within any 
identified areas for improvement.  

• Every staff member completing at 
least one Professional Development 
activity annually. 

• 61% of respondents are 
happy or very happy with 
NRDA’s service with a further 
26% neutral.  

• Achieved  
 
• Audit underway at time of 

writing 
 
• Zero  
 
• Achieved  
 
• Achieved   

Progress Update 
 
 

• Annual stakeholder engagement surveys demonstrate over 60% of respondents are positive about 
NRDA’s service, evidenced by:   

o Regional Business Partners programme customer satisfaction Promoter Score (NPS): +100; the 
highest score achieved in NZ 

o NRDA annual stakeholder survey where 56.3% of respondents were very happy or happy with 
our service, and 34% neutral 

• We have successfully achieved the delivery of a balanced budget at an EBITDA level of $3,874 
• We have delivered a clean audit 
• No lost-time work injuries for the year 2020-21. 
• The Team engagement survey was completed. The CEOs 360 review was developed and scheduled for 

December/January, however this could not be implemented due to resignation of the CEO and 
appointment of an interim CEO position.  Overall the results of the staff engagement survey showed 
staff to be highly engaged and positive about their working environment.  Key outcomes were to 
continue to provide opportunities to connect & grow as a team, and to further nurture the 
culture/environment as they are enjoying what has been started. 

• Team culture and professional development has been a focus this year with a new set of team values 
now complete: 

Status 
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He tima kotahi mātou - We are One Team  
He pākaha mātou - We are Bold 
He ānga mātou - We are Driven  
He whakaute tā mātou - We have Respect 

• Every staff member has had opportunity to complete at least one professional development activity 
including group Te Reo lessons. 
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4. Statement of Financial Performance  
These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements 
contained in section 4.5.  

4.1 Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense 
Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2021 

    
Account Notes 2021 2020 

    
Revenue 
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 1 3,135,124 1,662,859 
Revenue from exchange transactions 1 314,720 713,913 
Total Revenue   3,449,844 2,376,772 

    
Expenses 
Cost of sales   12,357 57,378 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 78,135 95,266 
Grants and sponsorship 3 263,009 247,283 
Marketing and strategic projects   1,076,687 492,865 
Employee benefits 4 1,177,716 1,103,528 
Other overhead and administrative expenses 5 916,201 429,027 
Total Expenses   3,524,104 2,425,347 

    
Net Finance Income 
Finance income 6 7,729 2,659 
Interest expense   (1,706) (1,807) 
Total Net Finance Income   6,023 852 

    
Operating Surplus Before Tax   (68,237) (47,723) 

    
Taxation expense 
Tax Expense 12 (17,622) (8,086) 

    
Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses 
Total Other Comprehensive Revenue and 
Expenses   - - 

    
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses 
After Tax   (50,615) (39,637) 

    

   31st August 2021 

Chairperson - Megan Matthews      

   31st August 2021 

Director - Sarah-Jane Weir         

These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31st August 2021  
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4.2 Statement of Financial Position 
Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2021 

 

  Account Notes 30 Jun 2021 30 Jun 2020 

     
Assets 
Current Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents 7 551,279 545,361 

 Receivables 8 33,301 217,936 
 Prepayments 9 11,213 14,765 

 
Inventories 
Investments 

10 
11 

22,897 
500,000 

27,515 
- 

     
Total Current Assets  1,118,691 805,577 
Non-Current Assets 
 Deferred tax  13 39,075 21,453 
 Property, Plant and Equipment 14 58,138 83,127 

 Intangibles 14 28,324 65,109 
Total Non-Current Assets  125,537 169,688 
Total Assets   1,244,228 975,266 

  
 

  
Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
 Payables 15 461,238 281,482 
 Taxes payable 15 (45,474) 34,224 
 Income tax payable 12b (2,475) (888) 

 Deferred revenue 18 459,249 242,330 
 Employee entitlements  16 73,783 77,826 
 Accruals 17 50,255 44,313 
 Loans and borrowings                                                            2,288 - 

Total Current Liabilities  998,864 679,287 
     
Total Liabilities    998,864 679,287 

     
Net Assets   245,364 295,979 

     
Equity 
 Share capital 19 370,285 370,285 

 Accumulated earnings  (124,921) (74,306) 
Total Equity   245,364 295,979 

  
 

  
  

 
  

 These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.  
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4.3 Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2021 

 

  
Notes Share  

capital 
Accumulated  

funds 

Other 
equity 

reserves 

Total  
equity 

Funds introduced 19 370,285     370,285 
Total opening balance   370,285 (34,667)  -  335,618 
Surplus/(deficit)for the year      (39,637)  (39,637) 
Other comprehensive revenue and expenses          
Total comprehensive revenue and expenses    (39,637) -  (39,637) 
Transfer to/(from) equity reserves in the year           
Balance at 30 June 2020   370,285 (74,304)   295,981 
            
Surplus/(deficit)for the year      (49,806)   (49,806) 
Other comprehensive revenue and expenses           
Total comprehensive revenue and expenses    - (49,806)  - (49,806) 
Transfer to/(from) equity reserves in the year           
Balance at 30 June 2021   370,285 (124,112)  - 246,173 

  
    

  
    

 These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.  
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4.4 Statement of Cash Flows 
Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2021 

 

  Account 2021 2020 

    
Statement of Cash Flows 
 Cash flow from operating activities 
 Membership subscriptions - 134,469 

 Fundraising, donations, grants and bequests - - 
 Public Sector grants and subsidies 3,463,810 2,015,016 

 
Receipts from goods and services provided, non-exchange 
transactions - - 

 
Receipts from goods and services provided, exchange 
transactions 387,586 310,602 

 Payments to suppliers (1,829,392) (937,228) 
 Payments to employees (1,181,759) (1,092,900) 
 Grants, contributions and sponsorship paid (244,993) (229,267) 
 Tax (81,283) 7,312 
 Net Cash from/ (used in) operating activities 513,969 208,004 

 Cash flow from investing activities 
 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - - 

 Proceeds from sale of intangible assets - - 
 Proceeds from sale of financial assets - - 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,362) (5,953) 
 Purchase of intangible assets (12,000) (31,401) 
 Investment in term deposit (500,000) - 
 Purchase of financial assets - - 
 Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (516,362) (37,354) 

 Cash flow from financing activities 
 Share capital - - 

 Proceeds from capital contributions - - 
 Proceeds from borrowings 2,288 - 
 Repayment of borrowings - - 
 Interest and dividends received 7,729 2,659 
 Interest paid on borrowings (1,706) (1,807) 
 Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 8,311 852 

    
  Account 2021 2020 

    
Cash and cash equivalents 
 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,918 171,502 

 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 545,361 373,859 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 551,279 545,361 

    
    
 These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.  
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4.5 Statement of Accounting Policies 
Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2021 

1. Reporting Entity 
 
The Nelson Regional Development Agency Ltd (“NRDA”) is a company incorporated and 
domiciled in New Zealand and registered under the Companies Act 1993. The NRDA is 
owned 100% by the Nelson City Council. 
 
The NRDA is a Council Controlled Organisation as defined in S6 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2002. 
 
The primary objective of the NRDA is to enhance the sustainable economic vitality of the 
Nelson Region by leading the development of a unique and compelling Regional Identity. 
This will be achieved in partnership with the public and private sectors, through the 
attraction and retention of investment, visitors and talent who want to add to the special 
character of the region. Accordingly, the Company has designated itself as a public sector 
(“PS”) public benefit entity (“PBE”) for the purposes of the Public Benefit Entity 
International Public-Sector Accounting Standards (“PBE IPSAS”). 
 
The financial statements of the NRDA for the year ended 30 June 2021 were authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on 31/08/2021.  
 
2. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
(a) Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements of the NRDA have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 1993, the Financial Reporting Act 2013 and the Local 
Government Act 2002. The financial statements comply with generally accepted 
accounting practice in New Zealand (“NZ GAAP”). 
 
The financial statements of the NRDA have been prepared in accordance with the Tier 2 
PS PBE Accounting Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime (“RDR”) and disclosure 
concessions have been applied. The NRDA is eligible to report in accordance with the Tier 
2 PS PBE Accounting Standards RDR because it does not have public accountability and 
it is not large (operating expenditure has been between $2m and $30m in the current 
and prior period). 
 
(b) Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements are presented for the year ended 30 June 2021. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and all 
transactions in the financial statements have been recorded using the accrual basis of 
accounting. 
 
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars. They are rounded to the 
nearest dollar. 
 
Management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt 
on the NRDA’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements have 
therefore been prepared on a going concern basis. 

(c) Goods and Services Tax 
The NRDA is registered for GST. All amounts in the financial statements are recorded 
exclusive of GST, except for debtors and creditors, which are stated inclusive of GST. 



 

 
58 
 

 
(d) Revenue 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits or 
service potential will flow to the NRDA and the revenue can be reliably measured, 
regardless of when the payment is being made. 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. 
 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognised. 
 
Revenue from non-exchange transactions: 
 
Grants, funding and donations 
 
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with the Council, the Government and other 
providers are recognised when the NRDA obtains control of the transferred asset, and: 

• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset 
will flow to the NRDA and can be measured reliably; and     

• The transfer is free from conditions that require the asset to be refunded or 
returned to the provider if the conditions are not fulfilled. 

Revenues from grants, funding and donations are measured at the fair value of the assets 
transferred over to the NRDA at the time of transfer. To the extent that there is a 
condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the grant, funding or 
donation amount or to return the donated asset, a deferred revenue liability is recognised 
instead of revenue. Revenue is then recognised only once the NRDA has satisfied these 
conditions. 
 
Revenue from exchange transactions: 
 
Event management 
 
Revenues from exchange transactions relating to contracts for event management are 
recognised when the service has been rendered by reference to the stage of completion. 
 
Membership fees 
 
Revenues from exchange transactions relating to membership fees are recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the course of the membership period. 
 
Trading fees and charges 
 
Revenues from exchange transactions relating to trading fees and charges are 
recognised when the underlying transaction occurs. 
 
Cost recoveries 
 
Revenues from exchange transactions relating to cost recoveries are recognised when 
the NRDA becomes entitled to receive the reimbursement. 
 
Interest income 
 
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over 
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the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 
 
(e) Lease expense 
Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits 
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the NRDA. Operating lease payments are 
recognised as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 
 
(f) Inventories 
Inventory is initially recorded at cost. To the extent that inventory was received through 
non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is 
its fair value at the date of acquisition. 
 
After initial recognition, inventories held for sale are subsequently measured at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value. However, inventory held for distribution or deployment at 
no charge or for a nominal charge is measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any 
loss of service potential. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment 
Initial recognition and subsequent expenditure: 
 
Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost. Cost includes expenditure that 
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The cost of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefit 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the NRDA, and if the item’s cost 
can be reliably measured. 
 
Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration 
the asset is initially measured at its fair value. 
 
Subsequent costs that meet the recognition criteria above are recognised in the carrying 
value of the item of property, plant and equipment. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. 
 
Measurement subsequent to initial recognition: 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost 
less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Depreciation: 
 
Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. 
Depreciation is charged at rates calculated to allocate the cost or valuation of the asset 
less any estimated residual value over its remaining useful life: 
 
 • Furniture SL 5 to 10 years 
 • Plant and Equipment SL 2 to 5 years 
 • Motor Vehicles DV 21 % 
 
The assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. 
 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount, if the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Please refer to 
policy on impairment of non-financial assets below. 
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Derecognition: 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
further future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying 
amount.  These are included in surplus or deficit. 
 
(h) Intangible assets 
Initial recognition: 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost 
of intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date 
of the exchange. 
 
Measurement subsequent to initial recognition: 
 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, 
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure 
is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
 
Amortisation: 
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The NRDA 
only has finite life intangible assets.  Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over 
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired.  The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of 
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. 
 
The amortisation rates applied to the NRDA’s intangible assets are summarised as follows: 
 
 • Software SL 40 % 
 • Website SL 40 % 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in surplus or 
deficit as the expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible 
assets.  
Derecognition:  
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic 
benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 
 
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
are recognised in surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised. 
 
(i) Employee benefits 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and 
salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. 
 
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related 
service. 
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Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at 
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the 
NRDA in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 
 
(j) Equity 
Equity is the Nelson City Council’s interest in the NRDA, measured as the difference 
between total assets and total liabilities. Equity is made up of the following components: 
 
Contributed capital 
 
Contributed capital is the capital that was initially invested by the Nelson City Council 
when the NRDA was formed. 
 
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense 
 
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense is the NRDA’s accumulated surplus or 
deficit since formation, adjusted for transfers to/from specific reserves. 
 
Restricted reserves 
 
This is a restricted equity reserve created by the NRDA for the purpose of financing 
marketing activities. The use of these funds is restricted to this specific purpose as 
resolved by the Board of Directors. 

(k) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument in another entity. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
The NRDA’s financial assets include: cash and short-term deposits and trade and other 
receivables. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
Trade and other receivables 
 
This category of financial assets is the most relevant to the NRDA. Trade and other 
receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. 
 
After initial measurement, trade and other receivables are assessed for indicators of 
impairment annually. 
 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
revenue and expense. 

(l) Taxation 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
Current income tax 
 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
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‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense 
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 
items that are never taxable or deductible. The NRDA’s current tax is calculated using tax 
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Deferred Tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will 
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the 
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the NRDA expects, at the end of the reporting 
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Current and deferred tax for the year 
 
Current and deferred tax are recognised in surplus or deficit, except when they relate to 
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which 
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity respectively. 
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4.6 Notes to the Financial Statements 
Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2021 

    Account 2021 2020 

     
1. Revenue 
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
  Government grants 1,466,092 487,442 

  Local body funding 1,669,032 1,175,417 
Total Revenue from non-
exchange transactions  

3,135,124 1,662,859 

Revenue from exchange transactions 
  Local body funding 78,706 165,444 

  Memberships - 134,469 
  Trading fees and charges 40,458 114,653 
  Sale of goods 146,618 170,417 
  Services rendered 43,169 118,255 

Total Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Other income 5,770 10,675 
 314,720 713,913 

     
  Total revenue 3,449,844 2,376,772 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
2. Depreciation, amortisation, and impairment 
Depreciation on property, plant, and equipment 
  Depreciation on PP&E  28,041 31,613 

  Loss/Gain on Assets 1,309 3,010 
Depreciation on Property, plant, and equipment 29,350 34,624 
 
Amortisation of intangibles 
  Depreciation on Software 48,785 60,643 
Total Amortisation of intangibles 48,785 60,643 
Total Depreciation, amortisation, and impairment 78,135 95,266 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
3. Grants and sponsorship 
  Regional Business Partnership 228,509 224,783 

  Sponsorship 34,500 22,500 
Total Grants and sponsorship  263,009 247,283 

 

   
    Account 2021 2020 
4. Employee benefits 
  Wages and salaries 1,087,714 1,047,731 

  Employer contributions to superannuation 32,751 31,626 
  Other costs of employment 57,250 24,171 

Total Employee 
benefits   

1,177,716 1,103,528 
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5. Expenses 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
Expenses 
  Audit fees 22,050 21,475 

  Director fees 35,000 37,500 
  Operating lease payments 20,251 19,160 
  Other administrative expenses 838,899 350,892 

Total other overhead and administrative expenses 916,201 429,027 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
6. Finance Income 
  Interest income on bank deposits 7,729 2,659 
Total Finance Income   7,729 2,659 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
7. Cash and cash equivalents 
  Cash at bank 549,787 544,109 

  Cash on hand 1,492 1,252 
Total Cash and cash equivalents 551,279 545,361 

     
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. 
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates on daily deposit balances. 
 
The cash and cash equivalents balance of the entity includes an amount of $0 (2020: $8,193) that relates to 
undistributed events grant funds that are subject to restrictions. The undistributed funds relate to the 
Events Contestable Fund, the restrictions attached to these grants specify that the funds must be 
distributed to organising committees of qualifying events approved by the Nelson Event Management 
Committee. 
    Account 2021 2020 

     
8. Receivables 
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 
  Trade debtors - 33,063 

  Related party receivables - - 
  Less allowance for doubtful debts - - 

Total Receivables from non-exchange transactions - 33,063 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
  Trade debtors 13,691 72,883 

  Related party receivables 18,400 111,990 
  Less allowance for doubtful debts - - 

Total Receivables from exchange transactions 32,091 184,873 
Total Receivables   32,091 217,936 

 

All receivables are non-interest bearing and receipt is normally on 30 days terms. Therefore, the 
carrying value of trade debtors and other receivables approximates its fair value. 
 
As at 30 June 2021 all overdue receivables have been assessed for impairment and appropriate 
allowances made. All receivables are subject to credit risk exposure. 
 
All receivables have been assessed in light of COVID-19 for impairment.  The governing body did not 
see a need to make an additional allowance outside the normal assessment for all receivables. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of trade debtors 
and other receivables as disclosed above. The entity does not hold any collateral as security. 
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    Account 2021 2020 

     
9. Prepayments 
  Service level agreements - - 

  Memberships and subscriptions 563 870 
  Rent prepaid 8,751 8,256 
  Software prepaid - - 
  Other prepayments 1,900 5,639 

Total Prepayments   11,213 14,765 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
10. Inventory 
  Stock on Hand - Nelson i-SITE 22,897 27,515 
Total Inventory   22,897 27,515 

     
No inventories have been pledged as security over borrowings and other liabilities. 
 
During the year inventories of $989 (2020: $3,612) were written off. 
 

    Account 2021 2020 

     
11. Investments 
Term deposits   Maturing withing 12 months of balance date 500,000 - 
Total Investments   500,000 - 

 

 

    Account 2021 2020 

     
12. Income tax 
a) Components of income tax expense  
  Current year tax expense - - 

  
Deferred tax movements temporary 
differences (17,622) (8,086) 

 Total income tax expense (17,622) (8,086) 
 
b) Income tax payable (receivable) 

 Opening balance (888) (9,110) 
 Current tax expense - - 

  Tax refunds received 888 9,100 
  Provisional tax and RWT paid (2,475) (888) 

 Closing balance (2,475) (888) 
     
c) Taxable income after adjustments 
  Operating profit before tax (68,237) (47,723) 

  Non-assessable income (3,213,830) (1,828,303) 
  Non-deductible expenses 3,216,721 1,828,303 
  Movement in timing differences            15,385              2,410 

 Total Taxable income after adjustments (49,961)    (45,313) 
 Total current tax at 28%   

  Tax - - 
 Total current tax at 28% - - 

d) Deferred tax relates to the following 
  Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 7,055 10,743 

  Movement in holiday pay 8,905 (1,925) 
  Movement in audit fee accrual (575) (6,408) 

Total movement in timing differences 15,385 2,410 
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    Account 2021 2020 
13. Deferred tax 
a) Deferred tax on temporary differences 
 Opening balance 21,453 13,367 
  Total Temporary differences movement: 17,622 8,086 

  Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (1,033) (4,419) 
  Movement in audit accrual 378 (735) 
  Movement in employee entitlements 4,287 552 
  Tax losses for the year 13,990 12,688 

Closing deferred tax asset/(liability) 39,075 21,453 
 

14. Property, plant and equipment  
Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are as follows:  
 Furniture & 

Fittings 
Office 

Equipment 
Motor 

Vehicles Total 

 2021 $ $ $ $ 
 Opening Book Value at 1 July 2020  36,033 20,607 26,486  83,126 
Purchases   4,362   4,362 
Deprecation  (8,964)  (9,896)  (9,181)  (28,041) 
Disposals   (1,309)   (1,309) 
Depreciation written back on disposal       

 Closing balance 27,069  13,764  17,305  58,138 
Carrying amount 30 June 2021  27,069  13,764  17,305  58,138 

    
Intangible assets   Software Total 

 2021      $ $ 
 Opening Book Value at 1 July 2020     65,109 65,109 
Purchases     12,000   12,000 
Deprecation     (48,785)  (48,785) 
Closing balance    28,324  28,324 
Carrying amount 30 June 
2021                     

    28,324 28,324 

    
 Furniture & 

Fittings 
Office 

Equipment 
Motor 

Vehicles Total 

 2020 $ $ $ $ 
 Opening Book Value at 1 July 2019  41,548 34,584 35,667  111,799 
Purchases 3,487  2,466   5,953 
Deprecation  (8,863)  (13,570)  (9,181)  (31,614) 
Disposals  (139)  (2,872)   (3,011) 
Depreciation written back on disposal       - 
 Closing balance 36,033  20,607  26,486  83,127 
Carrying amount 30 June 2020  36,033  20,608  26,486  83,127 

Intangible assets    Software Total 
 2020      $ $ 
 Opening Book Value at 1 July 2019     94,352 94,352 
Purchases     31,400   31,400 
Deprecation     (60,643)  (60,643) 
Closing balance    65,109  65,109 
Carrying amount 30 June 
2020                     

    65,109 65,109 

The governing body did not see the need for revaluation or write off of any property plant and equipment 
due to COVID-19. 
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    Account 2021 2020 

     
15. Payables 
Payables under non-exchange transactions 
  Trade creditors 17,442 18,017 

  Grants and donations (21,807) 8,193 
Total Payables under non-exchange transactions (4,365) 26,210 
Payables under exchange transactions 
  Related party payable 7,419 7,286 
 Trade creditors 458,184 247,986 
Total Payables under exchange transactions 465,603   255,272 
Total Payables 461,238 281,482 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
Taxes payable 
  GST (73,900) (1,508) 

  PAYE, Kiwi Saver 28,427 35,732 
Total Taxes payable   (45,474) 34,224 

 

    Account 2021 2020 

     
16. Employee entitlements 
  Annual leave entitlements 61,529 70,433 

  Wages & salaries accrued 12,254 7,393 
Total Employee 
entitlements   

73,783 77,826 

     
Employee entitlements represent the entity's obligation to its current and former employees that are 
expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date. These consist of accrued earnings and holiday 
entitlements at the reporting date. 

    
    Account 2021 2020 

     
17. Accruals 

  Audit fees 22,050 21,475 
  Other accruals 28,205 22,838 

Total Accruals   50,255 44,313 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
18. Deferred Revenue 
  Government Grants 442,960 132,500 

  

Local Body Grants 
Billing in Advance for Work Completed 
Customer Advances 

13,000 
- 

3,289 

70,000 
35,740 
4,090 

Total Deferred 
Revenue   

459,249 242,330 

     
Government Grants 
NRDA has been awarded government grants for the Strategic Tourism Asset Protection Programme, 
Regional Events Fund and for the Education to Employment Brokerage service contract. These funds are 
unconditional and are for the development of the region’s destination management plan and domestic 
marketing activity, development of and events in the local region and delivery of the Nelson Tasman 
Education to Employment Brokerage service. These are to be released to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Revenue and Expenses as the development work and events are completed.  
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Local Body Grants 
NRDA has been awarded two local body grants. One of these is conditional for the use on a Pasifica event 
in the local area and will be released to the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses once the 
event is completed. 
The second grant is unconditional and for the completion of the Nelson Tasman Youth NEET Pathway 
project. This will be released to the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses as work is 
completed over the next 2 months. 
Customer Advances 
Funds received by NRDA for use on specific group costs. These will be released to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses as the costs are incurred. 
     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
19. Share capital 
  Issued Capital 200,000 200,000 

  Equity transferred from predecessor entities 170,285 170,285 
Total Share capital   370,285 370,285 
        
    Account 2021 2020 

     
20. Directors fees 
  Meg Matthews - Chairperson 5,625 7,500 

  Sarah-Jane Weir 6,875 5,000 
  Martin Byrne (Resigned 25 August 2020) - 5,000 
  Marina Hirst Tristram 5,000 5,000 
  Alan Dunn 5,000 5,000 
  David Johnston 5,000 5,000 
  Jeremy Banks 5,000 5,000 
  Hugh Morrison (Appointed 18 December 2020) 2,500 - 

Total Directors fees   35,000 37,500 

     
    Account 2021 2020 

     
21. Related Parties 
Revenue 
  Nelson City Council- Shareholder 
  Events grants drawdown 287,250 364,202 

  Funding 1,753,777 1,363,917 
  Purchase of services 4,300 9,655 
  Total Nelson City Council- Shareholder 2,045,327 1,737,774 
  Nelson Airport Authority - Common Shareholder 

  Contribution to marketing activities - 30,449 

  
Total Nelson Airport Authority - Common 
Shareholder - 30,449 

Total Revenue Expenses  2,045,327 1,768,223 
  

  Nelson City Council- Shareholder 

  
Rental and venue hire 
Other contributions 

81,065 
10,000 

76,032 
- 

  Total Nelson City Council- Shareholder 91,065 76,032 
  Nelson Airport Authority - Common Shareholder 

  Contribution to marketing activities 1,346 - 

  
Total Nelson Airport Authority - Common 
Shareholder 1,346 - 

Total Expenses  92,411 76,032 
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22. Key management personnel remuneration 
  FTE 2021 

 $ 
2020 
 $ 

        
 Executive management  1 170,000-180,000 190,000-200,000 

 

23. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities  
 The entity has no contingent assets or contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2021 (2020 - nil).  
 
24. Events after the reporting period 
A New Zealand-wide lockdown to Covid Alert Level 4 came into effect at 11:59pm on 17 August 2021. At the 
date of signing of these accounts, the Nelson region is due to drop back to Alert Level 3 at 11:50pm on 31 
August 2021.  The i-SITE is unable to trade under Alert Level 4 and NRDA has applied for the Wage Subsidy 
for the staff employed at this site. There has been no other impact at this point to the operations of the 
NRDA, but continued restrictions under Alert Levels 4 and 3 could impact the ability of NRDA to deliver its 
planned programmes in terms of the Statement of Intent for 2021/22. 
 
     
    Account 2021 2020 
25. Operating Commitments 
  
Commitments to lease or rent assets 
  Computer Equipment Lease 
  No later than 1 year 13,133 16,675 

  Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 7,829 16,332 
  Total Computer Equipment Lease 20,962 33,007 
  Rental of NCC building 

  No later than 1 year 7,419 75,900 
  Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years - - 
  Total Rental of NCC building 7,419 75,900 
  Sublease of Mahitahi COLAB 

  No later than 1 year 23,755 94,800 
  Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years - 23,700 
  Total Sublease of Mahitahi COLAB 23,755 118,500 

Total Commitments to lease or 
rent assets  

52,136 227,407 

     
NRDA entered a 1 year lease for the Millers Acre- NCC Building which expired 30 June 2021. They are now on 
a month to month lease for the premises. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NELSON REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY LIMITED’S 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 

JUNE 2021 

 

 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Nelson Regional Development Agency Limited (the “Company”). 

The Auditor-General has appointed me, Ken Sandri, using the staff and resources of Crowe New 

Zealand Audit Partnership, to carry out the audit of the financial statements and performance 

information of the company on his behalf.  

 

Opinion  

 

We have audited: 

 

• the financial statements of the company on pages 53 to 69, that comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes 
to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; 
and 

 

• the performance information of the company on pages 12 to 52. 

 

In our opinion: 

 

• the financial statements of the company on pages 53 to 69:  

 
o present fairly, in all material respects:  

 
- its financial position as at 30 June 2021; and 

 
- its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

 
o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance 

with Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime (PBE Standards 
RDR) and 

 

• the performance information of the company on pages 12 to 52 presents fairly, in all material 
respects, the company’s actual performance compared against the performance targets and 
other measures by which performance was judged in relation to the company’s objectives for 
the year ended 30 June 2021. 

 

 

Our audit was completed on 31 August 2021. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 

 

The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of 

Directors and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements and the performance information, we 

comment on other information and we explain our independence. 
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Basis for our opinion 

 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 

incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New 

Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report.  

 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements and the performance 

information 

 

The Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the company for preparing financial statements that 

are fairly presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The 

Board of Directors is also responsible for preparing the performance information for the company. 

 

The Board of Directors is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable 

it to prepare financial statements and performance information that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements and the performance information, the Board of Directors is 

responsible on behalf of the company for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. The Board of Directors is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the Board of Directors intends 

to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the Local Government Act 2002. 

 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements and the performance 

information 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the 

performance information, as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  

 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in 

accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise 

from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of shareholders, taken on the basis of these 

financial statements and the performance information.  

 

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial 

statements and the performance information. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also: 

 

• We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and the 
performance information, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.   
 

• We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. 
 

• We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 
 

• We evaluate the appropriateness of the reported performance information within the 
company’s framework for reporting its performance. 

 

• We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by 
the Board of Directors and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements and the performance information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.  

 

• We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements and the 
performance information, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements and 
the performance information represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.   

 

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001. 

 

Information Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 

 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Directory, Chairperson and Chief Executive, and Introduction to NRDA reports 

on pages 3 to 11, but does not include the financial statements and the performance information, and our 

auditor’s report thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements and the performance information does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.  
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements and the performance information, our responsibility 

is to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements and the performance information or our knowledge obtained in 

the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is 

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 

report in this regard. 

 

Independence 

 

We are independent of the company in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-

General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and 

Ethical Standard 1: International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand 

Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.  

 

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with, or interests in, the company. 

 

 

 

 

 

Ken Sandri 

Crowe New Zealand Audit Partnership 

On behalf of the Auditor-General 

Nelson, New Zealand 

 

 

 

The title ‘Partner’ conveys that the person is a senior member within their respective division and is among the group of persons who hold an equity 
interest (shareholder) in its parent entity, Findex Group Limited. The only professional service offering which is conducted by a partnership is the 
Crowe Australasia external audit division.  All other professional services offered by Findex Group Limited are conducted by a privately owned 
organisation and/or its subsidiaries. 
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Professional Associations 
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